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Lance J .M. steinhart 
Attorney At Law 

6455 East Johns Crossing 
20U8 :E? 21 A / I :  58 

Suite 285 
Duluth, Georgia 30097 

Also Admitted in New York 
and Maryland 

September 20,2000 

Docket Control Center 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington Street 
Phoeniq Arizona 85007 
(602) 542-2237 

Telephone:(770) 232-9200 
Facsimile:(770) 232-9208 

Re: T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 
Requirements for Long Distance Resellers 

Dear SiriMadam: 

Enclosed please find for filing an original and ten (10) copies of T-NET= Internet Services, 
Inc.'s Application and Petition for Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to Provide 
Competitive Intrastate Telecommunications as a Redlet-. 

I have also enclosed an extra copy of this letter to be date stamped and returned to me in the 
enclosed, self addressed, postage prepaid envelope. 

If you have any questions or if I may provide you with any additional information, please do 
not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Respecthlly s u b m i d  

L 
y for T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. AttF 

Enclosures 
cc: Nancy K. Lee 

Christa Fallin w/out enclosures 



FORM A 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

Application and Petition for Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to Provide 
Competitive Intrastate Telecommunications Services as a 

Mail original plus 10 copies 
of completed application to: 

I For Docket Control Only: 
I (Place Stamp Here) 
I 

Docket Control Center I 
Arizona Corporation Commission I 
1200 W. Washington St. I 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 I 

I 
If you have current applications I 
pending in Arizona for provision I 
of reseller, AOS, or other I 
telecommunication services, 
please identifl: 

-.. 
‘ r - f y y 3 3 w b -  

I 
Type of Service: I 

I 
Type of Service: I 

Docket No. : Date: I Docket No.: 

Docket No. : Date: I Date Docketed: 

A. Company and Telecommunications Service Information 

(A-1) The name, address, and telephone number (including area code) of the applicant 
(company): 

T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 
67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 
(303) 790-91 11 

(A-2) If doing business (dba) under a name other than the applicant (company) name listed 
above, specify: 

(A-3) The name, address, telephone number, and facsimile number and email address of the 
management contact : 

Nancy K. Lee 



~ 

Executive Vice President of Regulatory and Billing Services 
T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 
67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 
(303) 790-91 1 l/Phone 
(303) 790-9540Eax 
scott.spiek@t-netix.com 

(A-4) The name, address, and telephone, facsimile number and email address of the attorney, 
if any, representing the applicant: 

Lance J.M. Steinhart 
Attorney at Law 
6455 East Johns Crossing 
Suite 285 
Duluth, Georgia 30097 
770-232-9200/Phone 
770-232-9208/Fax 
lstein hart@telecomcounsel.com 

(A-5) What type of legal entity is the applicant? 

~ Sole proprietorship 

- Partnership - limited, 
- general, 
- Arizona, 
__ Foreign 

- Limited liability company 

x Corporation - "SI', 
- "C", 
- non-profit, 
- Arizona, 
_X. Foreign 

~ Other, specitjr: 

(A-6) Include "Attachment A." Attachment A must list names of all owners, partners, limited 
liability company managers, or corporation officers and directors (specify), and indicate 
percentages of ownership. 

(A-7) 1. Is your company currently reselling telecommunication service in Arizona? If 
yes, provide the date or the approximate date that you began reselling service in 
Arizona. 

mailto:scott.spiek@t-netix.com
mailto:hart@telecomcounsel.com


Application and Petition for Competitive Reseller CC&N 

No. 

2. If the answer to 1. is "yes", identifjr the types of telecommunications services 
you resell; whether operator services are provided or resold and whether they 
are provided or resold to trafic aggregators (as defined in A.A.C. Rule R14-2- 
1001(3), a copy of which is attached); the number of customers in Arizona for 
each type of service; and the total number of intrastate minutes resold in the 
latest 12 month period for which data is available. Note: The Commission rules 
require that a separate CC&N, issued under Article 10, be obtained in order to 
provide operator services to traffic aggregators. 

3 .  If the answer to 1. is "no", when does your company plan to begin reselling 
service in Arizona? 

Upon acceptance of application. 

(A-8) Include "Attachment B." Attachment B, your proposed tariff, must include proposed 
rates and charges for each service to be provided, state the tariff (maximum) rate as 
well as the price to be charged, and state other terms and conditions, including deposits, 
that will apply to provision of the service(s) by your company. 

The Commission provides pricing flexibility by allowing competitive 
telecommunications service companies to price their services at levels equal to or below 
the tariff (maximum) rates. The prices to be charged by the company are filed with the 
Commission in the form of price lists. See the "Illustrative TarifXPrice List Example" 
attached. Note: Price list rate changes that result in rates that are lower than the tariff 
rate are effective upon concurrent notice to the Commission (See Rule R14-2- 
1 109(B)(2)). See Rule R14-2-1110 for the procedures to make price list changes that 
result in rates that are higher than the tariff rate. 

(A-9) The geographic market to be served is: 

_X_ statewide. 
- other, describe and provide a map depicting the area. 

(A-10) List the states in which you currently resell services similar to those you intend to resell 
in Arizona. 

None 

2 



Application and Petition for Competitive Reseller CC&N 

I 

(A- 1 1) Provide the name, address, and telephone number of the company's complaint contact 
person. 
Tim Russi 
T-NETM Internet Services, Inc. 
67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 801 12 
Phone: (800) 531-4245 

(A-12) Provide a list of states in which you have sought authority to resell telecommunications 
services and in which the state granted the authority with 

or did tmtgmnt your application for those services. For each state 
listed, provide a copy of the Commission's decision modifling or denying your 
application for authority to provide telecommunications services. 
None. 

~~~ 

(A- 13) Has the company been granted authority to provide or resell telecommunications 
services in any state where subsequently the authnrity wm revoked ? If "yes", 
provide copies of the State Regulatory Commission's decision revoking its 
authority. 

No. 

(A-14) Has the company been or is the company currently involved in any formal complaint 
proceedings before any state or Federal Regulatory Commission? If "yes", in 
which states is the company involved in proceedings and what is the substance 
of these complaints. Also, provide copies of Commission orders that have 
resolved any of these complaints. 

No. 

(A-15) Has the applicant been involved in any civil or criminal investigations related to the 
delivery of telecommunications services within the last five years? If "yes", in 
which states has the applicant been involved in investigations and why is the 
applicant being investigated? 
No. 

(A-16) Has the applicant had judgment entered against it in any civil matter or been convicted 
of criminal acts related to the delivery of telecommunications services within the 
last five years? If yes, list the states where judgment or conviction was entered 
and provide a copy of the court order. 

No. 

3 



Application and Petition for Competitive Reseller CC&N 

B. Technical Information 

(B-1) If your company is a switc.hless reseller, provide the name of the company or companies 
whose services you resell and skip to question (B-2). If you are not a switchless 
reseller, complete the remainder of this section. 

Yes, the company intends to resell services provided by MCI WorldCom. 

Include "Attachment C. " Attachment C should provide the following information: A 
diagram of the applicant's basic call network used to complete Arizona intrastate 
telecommunications traffic. This diagram should show how a typical call is routed in 
both its originating and terminating ends (i.e. show the access network and call 
completion network). 

Also include on the diagram the carrier(s) used for each major network component and 
indicate if the carrier is facilities-based or not. If the carrier is not facilities-based, 
indicate who owns the facilities (within the State of Arizona) that are used to originate 
and terminate the applicant's intrastate telecommunications traffic (i.e. provide a list of 
the Arizona facilities-based long distance carriers whose facilities are used to complete 
the applicant's intrastate traffic). 

(B-2) Will your customers be able to access alternative toll service providers or resellers via 
1+ or 101XXXX access, if your system becomes non-operational? 

Yes. 

4 



Application and Petition for Competitive Reseller CC&N 

C. Financial Information 

(C-1) Include "Attachment D." Attachment D must include copy of your Company's balance 
sheet, income statement, audit report (if audited) and all related notes to these financial 
statements for the two most recent years your Company has been in business. See 
Attachment D 

(C-2) If your Company does not have financial statements for the two most recent years, 
please give the date your Company began operations. N/A 

(C-3) If the balance sheets you submit do not have retained earnings accounts, please provide 
this account information on a separate sheet for each of the two years. N/A 

(C-4) If your Company is a subsidiary, please provide your Parent Company's financial 
statements, in addition to your Company's financial statements. See Attached D 

(C-5) If your Company intends to rely on the financial resources of its Parent Company, 
please provide a written statement from your Parent Company attesting that it will 
provide complete financial backing if your Company experienced a net loss or a 
business failure and that it will guarantee to payment of customers, advances, 
prepayments or deposits held by your Company if, for some reason, your Company 
cannot provide service or repay the deposits. See Attached 

(C-6) Will your customers be required to (or have the option to) pay advances, prepayments, 
or deposits for any of your products or services. 

YES-(If yes, provide an explanation of how and when these customers advances, 
prepayments, or deposits will be applied of reference the terms and conditions section 
of your Company's tariffs with this explanation. If this information is not explained in 
the tariff of this application, please provide it on a separate sheet.) 

N O X ( N o t e :  If at a later date, your Company decides it wants to offer or require 
customer advances, prepayments or deposits, it must submit financial statements as part 
of the tariff amendment process.) 



Application and Petition for Competitive Reseller CC&N 

I certifl that if the applicant is an Arizona corporation, a current copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission and the applicant holds a 
Certificate of Good Standing from the Commission. If the company is a foreign corporation or 
partnership, I certifl that the company has authority to transact business in Arizona. I certi@ that 
all appropriate city, county and/or State agency approvals have been obtained. Upon signing of 
this application I attest that I have read the Commission's rules and regulations relating to the 
regulations of telecommunications services and that the company will abide by Arizona State 
Law including the Arizona Corporation Commission Rules and Regulations. I agree that the 
Commission's rules apply in the event there is a conflict between those rules and the company's 
tariff, unless otherwise ordered by the Commission. I certifl that to the best of my knowledge 
the information provided in this Application and Petition is true and correct 

/ / 

Scott Spiek 
(Printed Name of Authorized Representative) 

Executive Vice President - Technology 
(Title) 

it SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this I8 - day of &.@WIb f3R ,2000. 

My Commission Expires: 
I I  -3045 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
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ATTACHMENTS 

A - Officers and Directors 

Officers: 

AIvyn A. Schopp 
John Giannaula Secretary 

President and CEO 

Directors: 

Alvyn A. Schopp 
John Giannaula 



B - Proposed Tariff 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 1 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

TITLE SHEET 

ARIZONA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF 

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and 

rates applicable to the furnishing of service or facilities for 

Telecommunications Services furnished by T-NETIX Internet 

Services, Inc. (llT-NETIX1l), with principal offices at 67 

Inverness Drive East, Englewood, Colorado 80112. This tariff 

applies for services furnished within the State of Arizona. This 

tariff is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission, and 

copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at the 

company's principal place of business. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES , INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 2 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

CONCURRING, CONNECTING OR 

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Concurring Carriers - None 
Connecting Carriers - None 
Other Participating Carriers - None 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES , I N C .  ORIGINAL SHEET 3 
ARIZONA CC T A R I F F  NO. 1 

CHECK SHEET 

The Sheets of this tariff are effective as of the date shown 
at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised 
sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original 
tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom 
of this sheet. 

SHEET 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

REVI S ION 
Original 

SHEET 
33 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

* New or Revised Sheet 

REVI S I ON 
Original 

ISSUE DATE: September 2 1 ,  2000 EFFECTIVE DATE: 
ISSUED BY: N a n c y  K. L e e ,  E x e c u t i v e  V i c e  P res iden t  

67 Inverness  D r i v e  E a s t  
E n g l e w o o d ,  C o l o r a d o  80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES. INC . ORIGINAL SHEET 4 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO . 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

Title Sheet .............................................. 1 
Concurring, Connecting or Other Participating 
Carriers ................................................. 2 
Check Sheet .............................................. 3 
Table of Contents ........................................ 4 
Tariff Format ............................................ 5 
Symbols .................................................. 6 
Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations ............ 7 
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations ........................ 9 

2.1 Undertaking of the Company ..................... 9 
2.2 Use of Services ............................... 10 
2.3 Liability of the Company ...................... 11 
2.4 Responsibilities of the Customer .............. 13 
2.5 Cancellation or Interruption of Service ....... 15 
2.6 Credit Allowance .............................. 17 
2.7 Restoration of Service ........................ 18 
2.8 Deposit ....................................... 18 
2.9 Advance Payments .............................. 18 
2.10 Payment and Billing ........................... 19 
2.11 Collection Costs .............................. 20 
2.12 Taxes ......................................... 20 
2.13 Late Charge ................................... 20 

2.15 Reconnection Charge ........................... 20 
2.14 Returned Check Charge ......................... 20 

Section 3 - Description of Service ...................... 21 
3.1 Computation of Charges ........................ 21 
3.2 Customer Complaints and/or Billing Disputes ... 22 
3.3 Level of Service .............................. 23 
3.4 Billing Entity Conditions ..................... 23 
3.5 Service Offerings ............................. 24 

Section 4 - Rates ....................................... 29 
Section 5 - Minimum/Maximum Rates ....................... 31 

ISSUE DATE: September 21. 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K . Lee. Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood. Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 5 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Sheet Numbering: Sheet numbers appear in the upper 
right corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequentially. 
However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. When a 
new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is 
added. For example, a new sheet added between pages 11 and 12 
would be page 11.1. 

B. Sheet Revision Numbers: Revision numbers also appear in 
the upper right corner of each sheet where applicable. These 
numbers are used to indicate the most current page version on 
file with the Commission. For example, 4th Revised Sheet 13 
cancels 3rd Revised Sheet 13. Consult the Check Sheet for the 
sheets currently in effect. 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence: There are nine levels of 
paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its 
next higher level: 

2. 
2.1 
2.1.1 
2.1.1.A 
2.1.1 .A. 1 
2.1.1.A.1. (a) 
2.1.1.A.1. (a) .I 
2.1.1.A.l. (a) .I. (i) 
2.1.1.A.1. (a) .I. (1). (1) 

D. Check Sheets: When a tariff filing is made with the 
Commission, an updated Check Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. 
The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff, with a 
cross reference to the current Revision Number. When new sheets 
are added, the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. 
All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an 
asterisk ( * ) .  There will be no other symbols used on this sheet 
if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc. 
remains the same, just revised revision levels on some sheets). 
The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find 
out if a particular sheet is the most current on Commission file. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES,  I N C .  ORIGINAL SHEET 6 
ARIZONA CC T A R I F F  NO. 1 

SYMBOLS 

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes 
indicated below: 

( C )  to signify change in regulation 
(D) to signify a deletion 
(I) to signify a rate increase 
(L) to signify material relocated in the tariff 
(N) to signify a new rate or regulation 
(R) to signify a rate reduction 
(T) to signify a change in text, but no change in rate or 

regulation 

ISSUE DATE: September 21,  2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: N a n c y  K. L e e ,  E x e c u t i v e  V i c e  P res iden t  

67 Inverness D r i v e  E a s t  
E n g l e w o o d ,  C o l o r a d o  80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 7 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Access Line - An arrangement from a local exchange telephone 
company or other common carrier, using either dedicated or 
switched access, which connects a Customer's location to the 
Company's location or switching center. 

Authorization Code - A numerical code, one or more of which 
may be assigned to a Customer, to enable the Company to identify 
the origin of the Customer so it may rate and bill the call. 
Automatic number identification (ANI) is used as the 
authorization code wherever possible. 

Commission - Used throughout this tariff to mean the Arizona 
Corporation Commission. 

Customer - The person, firm, corporation or other legal 
entity which orders the services of the and is responsible for 
the payment of charges and for compliance with the Company's 
tariff regulations. 

Company or T-NETIX - Used throughout this tariff to mean T- 
NETIX Internet Services, Inc., a Colorado Corporation. 

Dedicated Access - The Customer gains entry to the Company's 
services by a direct path from the Customer's location to the 
Company's point of presence. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES , INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 8 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

Resp. Org - Responsible Organization or entity identified by 
an 800 service Customer that manages and administers records in 
the 800 database and management system. 

Switched Access - The Customer gains entry to the Company's 
services by a transmission line that is switched through the 
local exchange carrier to reach the Company's point of presence. 

Telecommunications - The transmission of voice 
communications or, subject to the transmission capabilities of 
the services, the transmission of data, facsimile, signaling, 
metering, or other similar communications. 

Underlying Carrier - The telecommunications carrier whose 
network facilities provide the technical capability and capacity 
necessary for the transmission and reception of Customer 
telecommunications traffic. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE: 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 9 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

2.1 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Undertakina of the Companv 

This tariff contains the regulations and rates 
applicable to intrastate interexchange 
telecommunications services provided by the Company for 
telecommunications between points within the State of 
Arizona. Services are furnished subject to the 
availability of facilities and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this tariff in compliance with 
limitations set forth in the Commission's rules. The 
Company's services are provided on a statewide basis 
and are not intended to be limited geographically. The 
Company offers service to all those who desire to 
purchase service from the Company consistent with all 
of the provisions of this tariff. Customers interested 
in the Company's services shall file a service 
application with the Company which fully identifies the 
Customer, the services requested and other information 
requested by the Company. The Company reserves the 
right to examine the credit record and check the 
references of all applicants and Customers prior to 
accepting the service order. The service application 
shall not in itself obligate the Company to provide 
services or to continue to provide service if a later 
check of applicant's credit record is, in the opinion 
of the Company, contrary to the best interest of the 
Company. The Company may act as the Customer's agent 
for ordering access connection facilities provided by 
other carriers or entities when authorized by the 
Customer, to allow connection of a Customer's location 
to a service provided by the Company. The Customer 
shall be responsible for all charges due for such 
service arrangement. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES,  INC.  ORIGINAL SHEET 1 0  
ARIZONA CC T A R I F F  NO. 1 

2.1.1 The services provided by the Company are not 
part of a joint undertaking with any other 
entity providing telecommunications channels, 
facilities, or services, but may involve the 
resale of the Message Toll Services (MTS) and 
Wide Area Telecommunications Services (WATS) 
of underlying common carriers subject to the 
jurisdiction of this Commission. 

2.1.2 The rates and regulations contained in this 
tariff apply only to the services furnished 
by the Company and do not apply, unless 
otherwise specified, to the lines, 
facilities, or services provided by a local 
exchange telephone company or other common 
carriers for use in accessing the services of 
the Company. 

2.1.3 The Company reserves the right to limit the 
length of communications, to discontinue 
furnishing services, or limit the use of 
service necessitated by conditions beyond its 
control, including, without limitation: lack 
of satellite or other transmission medium 
capacity; the revision, alteration or 
repricing of the Underlying Carrier's 
tariffed offerings; or when the use of 
service becomes or is in violation of the law 
or the provisions of this tariff. 

2 . 2  U s e  of Services 

2.2.1 The Company services may be used for any 
lawful purpose consistent with the 
transmission and switching parameters of the 
telecommunications facilities utilized in the 
provision of services, subject to any 
limitations set forth in this Section 2.2. 

2.2.2 The use of the Company services to make calls 
which might reasonably be expected to 
frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another 
or in such a way as to unreasonably interfere 
with use by others is prohibited. 

I S S U E  DATE: September 21,  2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: N a n c y  K.  L e e ,  E x e c u t i v e  V i c e  P res iden t  

67 Inverness  D r i v e  E a s t  
E n g l e w o o d ,  C o l o r a d o  80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 11 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

2.2.3 The use of the Company services without 
payment for service or attempting to avoid 
payment for service by fraudulent means or 
devices, schemes, false or invalid numbers, 
or false calling or credit cards is 
prohibited. 

2.2.4 The Company services are available for use 24 
hours per day, seven days per week. 

2.2.5 The Company does not transmit messages, but 
the services may be used for that purpose. 

2.2.6 The Company services may be denied for 
nonpayment of charges or for other violations 
of this tariff. 

2.2.7 Customers shall not use the service provided 
under this tariff for any unlawful purpose. 

2.2.8 The Customer is responsible for notifying the 
Company immediately of any unauthorized use 
of services. 

2.3 Liabilitv of the Companv 

2.3.1 The Company shall not be liable for any 
claim, loss, expense or damage for any 
interruption, delay, error, omission, or 
defect in any service, facility or 
transmission provided under this tariff, if 
caused by the Underlying Carrier, an act of 
God, fire, war, civil disturbance, act of 
government, or due to any other causes beyond 
the Company's control. 

2.3.2 The Company shall not be liable for, and 
shall be fully indemnified and held harmless 
by the Customer against any claim, loss, 
expense, or damage for defamation, libel, 
slander, invasion, infringement of copyright 
or patent, unauthorized use of any trademark, 
trade name or service mark, proprietary or 
creative right, or any other injury to any 
person, property or entity arising out of the 
material, data or information transmitted. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 12 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

2.3.3 N o  agent or employee of any other carrier or 
entity shall be deemed to be an agent or 
employee of the Company. 

2.3.4 The Company’s liability for damages, 
resulting in whole or in part from or arising 
in connection with the furnishing of service 
under this tariff, including but not limited 
to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, 
delays, errors, or other defects or 
misrepresentations shall not exceed an amount 
equal to the charges provided for under this 
tariff for the long distance call for the 
period during which the call was affected. 
No other liability in any event shall attach 
to the Company. 

2.3.5 The Company shall not be liable for and shall 
be indemnified and saved harmless by any 
Customer or by any other entity from any and 
all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other 
action or any liability whatsoever, whether 
suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by 
any Customer or any other entity for any 
personal injury to, or death of, any person 
or persons, and for any loss, damage, 
defacement or destruction of the premises of 
any Customer or any other entity or any other 
property whether owned or controlled by the 
Customer or others. 

2.3.6 The Company shall not be liable for any 
indirect, special, incidental, or 
consequential damages under this tariff 
including, but not limited to, loss of 
revenue or profits, for any reason 
whatsoever, including the breakdown of 
facilities associated with the service, or 
for any mistakes, omissions, delays, errors, 
or defects in transmission occurring during 
the course of furnishing service. 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 13 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

2.3.7 The remedies set forth herein are exclusive 
and in lieu of all other warranties and 
remedies, whether express, implied, or 
statutory, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

2.4 Responsibilities of the Customer 

2.4.1 The Customer is responsible for placing any 
necessary orders and complying with tariff 
regulations. The Customer is also 
responsible for the payment of charges for 
services provided under this tariff. 

2.4.2 The Customer is responsible for charges 
incurred for special construction and/or 
special facilities which the Customer 
requests and which are ordered by the Company 
on the Customer's behalf. 

2.4.3 If required for the provision of the 
Company's services, the Customer must provide 
any equipment space, supporting structure, 
conduit and electrical power without charge 
to the Company. 

2.4.4 The Customer is responsible for arranging 
access to its premises at times mutually 
agreeable to the Company and the Customer 
when required for Company personnel to 
install, repair, maintain, program, inspect 
or remove equipment associated with the 
provision of the Company's services. 

2.4.5 The Customer shall cause the temperature and 
relative humidity in the equipment space 
provided by Customer for the installation of 
the Company equipment to be maintained within 
the range normally provided for the operation 
of microcomputers. 
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2.4.6 The Customer shall ensure that the equipment 
and/or system is properly interfaced with the 
Company facilities or services, the signals 
emitted into the Company network are of the 
proper mode, bandwidth, power and signal 
level for the intended use of the subscriber 
and in compliance with criteria set forth in 
this tariff, the signals do not damage 
equipment, injure personnel, or degrade 
service to other Customers. If the FCC or 
some other appropriate certifying body 
certifies terminal equipment as being 
technically acceptable for direct electrical 
connection with interstate communications 
service, the Company will permit such 
equipment to be connected with its channels 
without the use of protective interface 
devices. If the Customer fails to maintain 
the equipment and/or the system properly, 
with resulting imminent harm to the Company 
equipment, personnel or the quality of 
service to other Customers, the Company may, 
upon written notice, require the use of 
protective equipment at the Customer's 
expense. If this fails to produce 
satisfactory quality and safety, the Company 
may, upon written notice, terminate the 
Customer's service. 

2.4.7 The Customer must pay the Company for 
replacement or repair of damage to the 
equipment or facilities of the Company caused 
by negligence or willful act of the Customer 
or others, by improper use of the services, 
or by use of equipment provided by Customer 
or others. 

2.4.8 The Customer must pay for the loss through 
theft of any Company equipment installed at 
Customer's premises. 

2.4.9 If the Company installs equipment at 
Customer's premises, the Customer shall be 
responsible for payment of any applicable 
installation charge. 
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2.4.10 The Customer must use the services offered in 
this tariff in a manner consistent with the 
terms of this tariff and the policies and 
regulations of all state, federal and local 
authorities having jurisdiction over the 
service. 

2.5 Cancellation or Interruption of Services 

2.5.1 Without incurring liability, upon five (5) 
working days' (defined as any day on which 
the company's business office is open and the 
U.S. Mail is delivered) written notice to the 
Customer, the Company may immediately 
discontinue services to a Customer or may 
withhold the provision of ordered or 
contracted services: 
2.5.1.A For nonpayment of any sum due the 

Company for more than thirty (30) 
days after issuance of the bill for 
the amount due, 

2.5.1.B For violation of any of the 
provisions of this tariff, 

2.5.1.C For violation of any law, rule, 
regulation, policy of any governing 
authority having jurisdiction over 
the Company services, or 

2.5.1.D By reason of any order or decision 
of a court, public service 
commission or federal regulatory 
body or other governing authority 
prohibiting the Company from 
furnishing its services. 
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2.5.2 Without incurring liability, the Company may 
interrupt the provision of services at any 
time in order to perform tests and 
inspections to assure compliance with tariff 
regulations and the proper installation and 
operation of Customer and the Company 
equipment and facilities and may continue 
such interruption until any items of 
noncompliance or improper equipment operation 
so identified are rectified. 

2.5.3 Service may be discontinued by the Company 
without notice to the Customer, by blocking 
traffic to certain countries, cities or NXX 
exchanges, or by blocking calls using certain 
Customer authorization codes, when the 
Company deems it necessary to take such 
action to prevent unlawful use of its 
service. The Company will restore service as 
soon as it can be provided without undue 
risk, and will, upon request by the Customer 
affected, assign a new authorization code to 
replace the one that has been deactivated. 

2.5.4 The Customer may terminate service upon 
thirty (30) days written notice for the 
Company's standard month to month contract. 
Customer will be liable for all usage on any 
of the Company's service offerings until the 
Customer actually leaves the service. 
Customers will continue to have Company usage 
until the Customer notifies its local 
exchange carrier and changes its long 
distance carrier. Until the Customer so 
notifies its local exchange carrier, it shall 
continue to generate and be responsible for 
long distance usage. 
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2 .6  C r e d i t  Allowance 

2.6.1 Credit may be given for disputed calls, on a 
per call basis. 

2.6.2 Credit shall not be issued for unavailability 
of long distance services. 
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2.7 Restoration of Service 

The use and restoration of service shall be in 
accordance with the priority system specified in part 
64, Subpart D of the Rules and Regulations of the 
Federal Communications Commission. 

2.8 Deposit 

The Company does not require deposits. 

2.9 Advance Pavments 

The Company does not require advance payments. 
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2.10 Pavment and Billinq 

2.10.1 Service is provided and billed on a billing 
cycle basis, beginning on the date that 
service becomes effective. Billing is 
payable upon receipt. 

2.10.2 The customer is responsible for payment of 
all charges for services furnished to the 
Customer, as well as to all persons using the 
Customer's codes, exchange lines, facilities, 
or equipment, with or without the knowledge 
or consent of the Customer. The security of 
the Customer's Authorization Codes, 
subscribed exchange lines, and direct connect 
facilities is the responsibility of the 
Customer. All calls placed using direct 
connect facilities, subscribed exchange 
lines, or Authorization Codes will be billed 
to and must be paid by the Customer. 
Recurring charges and non-recurring charges 
are billed in advance. Charges based on 
actual usage during a month and any accrued 
interest will be billed monthly in arrears. 

2.10.3 All bills are presumed accurate, and shall be 
binding on the customer unless objection is 
received by the Company in writing within 30 
days after such bills are rendered. No 
credits, refunds, or adjustments shall be 
granted if demand therefore is not received 
by the Company in writing within such 30 day 
period. 
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2.11 Collection Costs 

In the event Company is required to initiate legal 
proceedings to collect any amounts due to Company for 
regulated or non-regulated services, equipment or 
facilities, or to enforce any judgment obtained against 
a Customer, or for the enforcement of any other 
provision of this tariff or applicable law, Customer 
shall, in addition to all amounts due, be liable to 
Company for all reasonable costs incurred by Company in 
such proceedings and enforcement actions, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, collection agency fees or 
payments, and court costs. In any such proceeding, the 
amount of collection costs, including attorneys' fees, 
due to the Company, will be determined by the court. 

2.12 Taxes 

All federal, state and local taxes, assessments, 
surcharges, or fees, including sales taxes, use taxes, 
gross receipts taxes, and municipal utilities taxes, 
are billed as separate line items and are not included 
in the rates quoted herein. 

2.13 Late Charae 

A late fee of 1.5% per month or the amount otherwise 
authorized by law, whichever is lower, will be charged 
on any past due balances. 

2.14 Returned Check Charae 

A fee will be charged whenever a check or draft 
presented for payment for service is not accepted by 
the institution on which it is written. 

2.15 Reconnection Charae 

A reconnection fee of $25 per occurrence will be 
charged when service is reestablished for Customers 
which have been disconnected due to non-payment. 
Payment of the reconnection fee and any other 
outstanding amounts will be due in full prior to 
reconnection of service. 
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3.1 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 
Computation of Charcres 

3.1.1 The total charge for each completed call may 
be a variable measured charge dependent on 
the duration, distance and time of day of the 
call. The total charge for each completed 
call may also be dependent only on the 
duration of the call, i.e. a statewide flat 
rate per minute charge. The variable 
measured charge is specified as a rate per 
minute which is applied to each minute. All 
calls are measured in increments as set forth 
in the Rates Section of this tariff. All 
calls are rounded up to the next whole 
increment. 

3.1.2 Where mileage bands appear in a rate table, 
rates for all calls are based upon the 
airline distance between the originating and 
terminating points of the call, as determined 
by the vertical and horizontal coordinates 
associated with the exchange (the area code 
and three digit central office code) 
associated with the originating and 
terminating telephone numbers. If the 
Customer obtains access to the Company's 
network by a dedicated access circuit, that 
circuit will be assigned an exchange for 
rating purposes based upon the Customer's 
main telephone number at the location where 
the dedicated access circuit terminates. The 
vertical and horizontal ( V  & H) coordinates 
for each exchange and the airline distance 
between them will be determined according to 
industry standards. 
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3.1.3 Timing begins when the called station is 
answered and two way communication is 
possible, as determined by standard industry 
methods generally in use for ascertaining 
answer, including hardware answer supervision 
in which the local telephone company sends a 
signal to the switch or the software 
utilizing audio tone detection. Recognition 
of answer supervision is the responsibility 
of the Underlying Carrier. Timing for each 
call ends when either party hangs up. The 
Company will not bill for uncompleted calls. 

3.2 Customer Complaints and/or Billincr Disputes 

Customer inquiries or complaints regarding service or 
accounting may be made in writing or by telephone to 
the Company at: 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 
(800) 531-4245 

Any objection to billed charges should be reported 
promptly to the Company. Adjustments to Customers' 
bills shall be made to the extent that records are 
available and/or circumstances exist which reasonably 
indicate that such charges are not in accordance with 
approved rates or that an adjustment may otherwise be 
appropriate. Where overbilling of a subscriber occurs, 
due either to Company or subscriber error, no liability 
exists which will require the Company to pay any 
interest, dividend or other compensation on the amount 
overbilled. 
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If a Customer accumulates more than One Dollar of 
undisputed delinquent the Company 800 Service charges, 
the Company Resp. Org. reserves the right not to honor 
that Customer's request for a Resp. Org. change until 
such undisputed charges are paid in full. 

3.3 Level of Service 

A Customer can expect end to end network availability 
of not less than 99% at all times for all services. 

3 . 4  B i l l i n u  E n t i t v  C o n d i t i o n s  

When billing functions on behalf of the Company or its 
intermediary are performed by local exchange telephone 
companies or others, the payment of charge conditions 
and regulations of such companies and any regulations 
imposed upon these companies by regulatory bodies 
having jurisdiction apply. The Company's name and 
toll-free telephone number will appear on the 
Customer's bill. 
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3.5 Service O f f e r i n c r s  

3.5.1 1+ Dialing 

This service permits Customers to originate 
calls via switched or dedicated access lines, 
and to terminate intrastate calls. The 
customer dials ''1+'' followed by "ten digits" 
or dials "101XXXX" followed by "1+ ten 
digits". 

3.5.2 Travel Cards 

The Customer utilizes an 11 digit "toll-free" 
access number established by the Company to 
access a terminal. Upon receiving a voice 
prompt, the Customer uses push button dialing 
to enter an identification code assigned by 
the Company, and the ten digit number of the 
called party. 

3.5.3 800 Service (Toll-Free) 

This service is inbound calling only where an 
800, 888 or other toll-free prefix number 
rings into a Customer's premise routed to a 
specific telephone number or terminated over 
a dedicated facility. 
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3.5 .4  Reserved f o r  Future  Use 
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Reserved f o r  Future Use 
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3.5.5 Directory Assistance. 

Access to long distance directory assistance 
is obtained by dialing 1 + 555-1212 for 
listings within the originating area code and 
1 + (area code) + 555-1212 for other 
listings. When more than one number is 
requested in a single call, a charge will 
apply for each number requested. A charge 
will be applicable for each number requested, 
whether or not the number is listed or 
published. 
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3.5.6 Specialized Pricing Arrangements. 

Customized service packages and competitive 
pricing packages at negotiated rates may be 
furnished on a case-by-case basis in response 
to requests by Customers to the Company for 
proposals or for competitive bids. Service 
offered under this tariff provision will be 
provided to Customers pursuant to contract. 
Unless otherwise specified, the regulations 
for such arrangements are in addition to the 
applicable regulations and prices in other 
sections of the tariff. Specialized rates or 
charges will be made available to similarly 
situated Customers on a non-discriminatory 
basis. 
affinity group plans, or term plan 
commitments. 

Discounts may apply based upon volume, 

3.5.7 Emergency Call Handling Procedures 

Emergency 11911" calls are not routed to 
company, but are completed through the local 
network at no charge. 

3.5.8 Promotional Offerings 

The Company may, from time to time, make 
promotional offerings to enhance the 
marketing of its services. These offerings 
may be limited to certain dates, times and 
locations. The Company will notify the 
Commission of such offerings as required by 
Commission rules and regulations. 
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SECTION 4 - RATES 

4.1 1+ & lOlXXXX Dialinq 

Residential Switched: $0.1679 per minute 

Business Switched: $0.1455 per minute 

Business Dedicated: $0.0874 per minute 

A $4.95 per month per number service charge applies. 

Billed in one minute increments 

4.2 Travel Cards 

$0.35 per minute 

A $ . 2 5  per call service charge applies. 
Billed in one minute increments 

ISSUE DATE: September 21, 2000 EFFECTIVE DATE : 
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 30 
ARIZONA CC TARIFF NO. 1 

4.3 800 Service (Toll Free) 

Residential Switched: $0.1734 per minute 

Business Switched: $0.1511 per minute 

Business Dedicated: $0.1011 per minute 

A $4.95 per month per number service charge applies. 

Billed in one minute increments 

4.4 Reserved for future Use 
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Night/Weekend Rate Period 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

D i r e c t o r v  Ass i s tance  

$ . 9 5  

R e t u r n e d  C h e c k  Charcre  

$25 .00  

Rate Periods 

Monday - Friday 

8 a.m. 
to 
5 p.m.* 

Daytime Rate Period 

5 p.m. 
to 
11 p.m.* 

Evening Rate Period Evening 

Period 
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4.8 Pavphone Dial Around Surcharae 

A dial around surcharge of $ .35  per call will be added to 
any completed INTRAstate toll access code and subscriber 
8 0 0 / 8 8 8  type calls placed from a public or semi-public 
payphone. 

4.9 Universal Service Fund Assessment & Presubscribed 
Interexchanae Carrier Charae 

The Customer will be assessed a monthly Universal Service 
Fund Contribution charge on all telecommunications services, 
which in no event shall be less than the prevailing 
contribution percentage rate charged the Company on 
intrastate traffic by the Universal Service Administrative 
Company (or any successor) or any state agency or its 
administrator. A Presubscribed Interexchange Carrier Charge 
("PICC") applies on a monthly basis to all Customer monthly 
bills at the prevailing rate. 
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5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

5.4 

5.5 

SECTION 5 - MINIMUM/MAXIMUM RATES 

1 + Dialinq 

$0.04 per minute Minimum 

$0.40 per minute Maximum 

Travel Cards 

$0.05 per minute Minimum 

$0.40 per minute Maximum 

800 Service (Toll-Free) 

$0.04 per minute Minimum 

$0.40 per minute Maximum 

Directorv Assistance 

$0.50 Minimum 

$1.50 Maximum 

Pavphone Dial Around Surcharqe 

$0.35 Minimum 

$1.00 Maximum 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
T-NETIX, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and 
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1999. These consolidated 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended 
December 3 1, 1999, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

KPMG LLP 

Denver, Colorado 
March 21,2000 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
. .  . .  

December 31, 
1999 1998 

(amounts in thousands 

ASSETS ~ 

................................................. 
.......................................................... 

.............................................................. 
................................................ 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

Accounts receivable, net (note 2) ............................................ 

Total current assets 
Property and equipment, net (note 2) ............................... .:. ........ 
Goodwill, net ........... ; ............................. :. .................... 
Intangible and other assets, net (note 2) ... ... ................................. 

........................................................ 

......................................................... 
Deferred tax asset 

Total assets 

$ 118 
16,868 
1,038 

710 
18,734 
33,858 
6,401 
2,297 
9,252 

$ 70,542 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Liabilities: ....................................................... Accounts payable $ 1 1,914 
Accrued liabilities (note 2) 
Debt (note 5) .  

Long term debt (note 5) 

.............................................. 7,606 
......................................................... 7,366 

............................................ 
................................................ 

................................................... 
Total current liabilities 26,886 

21,555 
Total liabilities 48,441 

Stockholders' equity (note 6): - 
Preferred stock, $.01 stated value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued 
Common stock, $.01 stated value, 70,000,000 shares authorized; 12,699,400 and 

12,225,634 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 1999 and 1998, 
127 respectively 

Additional paid-in capital 35,791 
Accumulated deficit. (13,817) 

.......................................................... 
................................................ 

.................................................... 
Total stockholders' equity .......................................... 22,101 

Commitments and contingencies (note 9) 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ...................................... $ 70,542 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

$ 6; 
16,41 
1 ,o; 

2f 
. 18,4! 

3 1,4! 
5,8: 

9( 
8,7: 

$65,4 

- 

- 
- - 

$ 4,6 
596 

21,3 
31,7 

35,8 

- 

4,1 

1 
33,c 
& 

29,C - 
7 $65,~ - 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

' .CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended December 31, 
1999 1998 1997 - _ _ _  . -- 
(amounts in thousands, except 

. .  per share amounts) 

Revenue: 
Telecommunications services.. .................................. $ 39,274 $43,089 $39,616 
Direct call provisioning., ....................................... 27,517 22,736 19,051 

.................................... Equipment sales and other.. 6,'444 -- 2,416 3,638 

Total revenue. .......................................... 
Expenses: 

Operating costs and expenses: 
Telecommunications services .................................. 
Direct call provisioning. ...................................... 
Cost of equipment sold and other. ............................. 

Total operating costs and expenses.. ....................... 
Selling, general and administrative ............................... 

. Impairment of telecommunications assets ......................... 
Depreciation and amortization. .................................. 

Total expenses .......................................... 
Operating income (loss) ................................. 

Merger transaction expenses ...................................... 
Interest and other income (expense), net ........................... 

Earnings (loss) before income taxes. ....................... 
Income tax benefit (expense) (note 8) ............................. 
Net earnings (loss). ............................................. 
Basic earnings(1oss) per common share, ............................ 
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share .......................... 
Weighted average common shares - basic .......................... 
Weighted average common shares - diluted. ........................ 

Research and development ..................................... 

13,235 

17,674 
25,032 
3,615 

46,321 
13,794 
5,078 
4,632 

1 1,620 
8 1,445 

(892 10) 

(2,137) 
( 1,017) 

(11,364) 
1,117 

$ ( 10,247) 

$ (0.82) 

$ (0.82) 

12,511 

12,511 

68,241 

17,014 
20,048 

848 
37,910 
13,401 
3,936 

10,174 
65,421 
2,820 

- 

- 
(2,354) 

466 
(196) 

$ 270 

$ 0.02 

$ 0.02 

12,172 

12,930 

62,305 

15,262 
16,462 
1,298 

'33,022 
11,816 
3,554 

9,546 
57,938 
4,367 

(1,583) 
2,784 

(1,039) 
$ 1,745 

$ 0.15 

$ 0.13 

11,909 

12,988 

- 

See accompanying notes to consolidated hancial statements. 
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T-NETIX; INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Additional Total 
Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Stockholders' 

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity -- 
(amounts in thousands) 

Balances at January 1, 1997 ................... 11,505 $ 115 $ 30,130 $ (3,279) $ 26,966 
Common stock issued uvon exercise of 

:I . 
I :  

stock options. .............................. 155 2 204 - 206 
94 Common stock issued in business acquisition. ..... 

600 Common stock issued for cash., ................ 
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders 

402 Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8) 
............................... - - - 1,745 1,745 Net earnings.. 

- . 94 - 8 
202 2 598 - 

- 402 - ......... (36) . (36) - - - 

-- 
Balances at December 31, 1997. ................ 11,870 

stock options. .............................. 230 
Conversion of preferred stock. .................. 149 
Purchase of treasury stock ..................... (32) 
Stock compensation ........................... 
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders ......... 
Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8) 

Net earnings ................................. 

Common stock issued upon exercise of 

- 
- 
- 

Adjustments to conform year ends of combined 
companies 9 ................................. - - 

119 31,428. 

2 819. 
1 592 

- 75 

- 198 

(98) - 
- 

38 - 

(1,570) 29,977 

(2,235) (2,197) 
270 270 

Balances at December 31, 1998.. ............... 12,226 122 33,052 (3,570) 29,604 
Common stock issued upon exercise of 

Common stock issued for intangible asset 

Net loss.. 

1 256 - 257 

.................................. 4 2,483 - 2,487 (note 3) 375 

stock options.. ............................. 98 

(10,247) (10,247) - - ................................... - -  
Balances at December 31,1999.. ............... 12,699 $ 127 $ 35,791 $(13,817) $ 22,101 =- 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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T.NETM, INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended December 31. 

1999 1998 1997 
(amounts in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by 
Net earnings (loss) ............................................ $(lo. 247) $ 270 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization ................................. 11. 620 10. 174 
Impairment loss and investment write-off ....................... 4. 632 600 

15 

................................... 75 

Change in accounts receivable. net ........................... (263) I. 680 

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) .......................... (1 . 1 17) 
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment (206) (83) 
Stock compensation expense - .................. 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Change in prepaid expenses ................................. (48) (678) 
Change in inventory ....................................... (441 1 (164) 
Change in intangibles and other assets ........................ (593) (227) 
Change in accounts payable 6. 972 ( 549) ................................. 
Change in accrued liabilities ................................ I. 907 (670) 

Cash provided by operating activities ....................... 12. 216 10. 443 
Cash used in investing activities: 

Capital expenditures ......................................... (14. 560) (6. 190) 
Acquisition of business or business assets ....................... (1. 377) (2. 679) 
Proceeds from disposal or property and equipment ................ 473 121 
Other investing activities ..................................... (980) (2. 460) 

Cash used in investing activities ........................... (16. 444) (1 I. 208) 

Net proceeds (payments) under line of credit ................... (2. 318) 
Payments of debt ........................................... (8. 078) (3. 064) 
Proceeds from debt .......................................... - 5. 73 1 
Common stock issued for cash under option plans ................ 82 1 
Common stock issued for cash ................................ 

..................................... (124) Treasury stock purchased - 
(9) Dividends on preferred stock - 

Redemption on preferred stock ................................. - ' (7) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
11. 489 

257 - - 
.................................. 

Cash provided by (used in ) hancing activities ............... 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............... 
Adjustment to conform year ends of combined companies ........... 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .................... 

3. 668 
(560) - 
678 

1. 030 
265 
48 
365 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ......................... $ 118 $ 678 
Cash paid for interest .......................................... $ 2. 568 $ 1. 773 
Cash paid for income taxes ....................................... $ 217 $ 622 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements . 

$ 1. 745 

9. 546 

570. 
6 

. 

. 

(5 .  306) 
(146) 
. 1 5  
(371) 

(4. 834) 
I. 356 
2. 581 

(9. 0611 
(175) 

(1. 208) 
(IO. 431) 

13 

6. 765 
(3. 396) 
3. 722 
.206 
600 
. 
(36) . 

~~ 

7. 861 
11 

354 
$ 365 
$ I. 502 

$ 95 

. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,1999 and 1998 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
General * .  

T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (“T-NETIX” or the “Company”) was incorporated in Colorado in 
1986. The Company has three reportable segments the Corkctions Division, the Internet Services Division 
and the SpeakEZ Division (“SpeakEZ”). 

The Corrections Division primarily manages its specialized telecommunications hardware and software 
systems for long distance and local exchange carriers on a contractual basis. The long distance and local 
exchange carriers in turn pay a fee per call to the Company for each billable call made from a phone subject to 
a contract with the Company. The Company also receives revenue from billing collect calls made from 
correctional facilities in which the Company’s specialized telecommunications hardware and software systems 
are located. The Internet Services Division provides interLATA Internet services to Internet subscribers and 
buys and resells Internet bandwidth. SpeakEZ engages in the research and development and sales and 
marketing of speaker verification technology. 

Basis of Presentation 

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. (caGateway”), a 
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As a result of the merger, Gateway became a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to the merger, the Company changed its year-end from July 31 to 
December 31. Gateway’s year-end was December 31. 

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests. As a result, the Company’s financial statements 
have been restated to combine Gateway’s financial statements as if the merger had occurred at the beginning 
of the earliest period presented. Information concerning common stock and per share data has been restated 
on an equivalent share basis. 

‘ The consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the y e i s  ended December 31, 1998 and 
1997 have been recast to reflect the results of operations and cash flows for T-NETIX for the years ended 
July 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, combined with Gateway for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 
1997. 

As a result of T-NETIX and Gateway having different fiscal year ends prior to 1999, the results of 
operations of T-NETIX for the five month period ended December 31, 1998, have been excluded from the 
reported results of operations. The net loss for the period and common stock transactions during that period 
have been accounted for as an adjustment of stockholders’ equity at January 1, 1999. T-NETIX had revenue, 
expenses, and net loss of $15,041,000, $17,606,000, and $2,235,000, respectively, for the five month period 
ended December 31, 1998. 

Liquidity 
. .  

The Company incurred losses from continuing operations in the current year of $10.2 million and had a 
working capital deficit of $8.2 million at December 31,1999. The Company received a waiver from its lenders 
relating to various covenant violations on its bank credit facility. In connection with the waiver, the lenders 
agreed to revise the existing covenant requirements if the Company can raise $7 million of additional financing 
on or before April 14,2000. The funds raised are required to be used to reduce the outstanding balance on the 
credit facility. These factors among others may indicate that the Company may not be able to meet its 
obligations as they become due or the Company may have to significantly reduce installations and curtail other 
operations. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

- (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The Company, has taken steps to obtain the additional financing, on or before the deadline of April 14, 
2000, by entering into term sheets to issue convertible preferred securities to a non-related party and 
subordinated debt instruments to one of the Company’s directors. Management believes that they will 
complete the above financing arrangements in the time frame imposed by the lenders. Should the Company be 
unable to complete the financing arrangements or an alternative financing arrangement by the deadline 
currently imposed by the lenders, the Company would again be in breach of the loan agreement covenants and 
the lenders could commence immediate collection activity. 

In addition, the Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations and obtain adhitional 
financing to ensure that the Company is able to carry out its fiscal 2000 business plan. There can be no 
assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from operations or that additional 
financing will be available, or if available, will be obtained on acceptable terms. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Risks and Uncertainties 

A majority of the Company’s revenue is generated from services provided to significant telecommunica- 
tions customers. The loss of a major customer could affect operating results adversely. 

Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as certificates of deposit and money market 
funds, with original maturities of 90 days or less. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The reported amounts of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, 
receivables, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturities. The 
reported amounts of debt approximate fair value due to market interest rates that these debts bear. 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company’s revenue is primarily 
concentrated in the United States in the telecommunications industry. The Company had trade accounts 
receivable from 5 customers that comprised 2 8 1  and 3 1% of total trade accounts receivable at December 3 1, 
1999 and 1998, respectively. The Company does not require collateral on accounts receivable balances and 
provides allowances for potential credit losses. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been established based 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

on historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable at the end of the 
accounting period. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out 
method. Provisions, when required, are made to reduce excess and obsolete inventories to their estimated net 
realizable values. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost, including costs necessary to place such property and equipment 
in service. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operations as incurred. 

Construction in progress represents the cost of material purchases and construction costs, including 
interest capitalized during construction, for telecommunications hardware systems in various stages of 
completion. During the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, interest capitalized was insignificant. 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 to 7 years for 
telecommunications equipment and 5 to 10 years for office equipment. No depreciation is recorded on 
construction in progress until the asset is placed in service. 

Intangible and Other Assets 

Other assets include intellectual property assets, capitalized computer software, patent defense and 
application costs, deposits and long-term prepayments and other intangible assets. Patents and intangible 
assets are stated at cost. Amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over 17 years for patent costs and 
periods ranging from 3 to 7 years for other intangibles. Amortization charged to expense was $1,500,000, 
$936,000, and $796,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost over the net tangible and identifiable assets of the acquired 
businesses, is stated at cost and is amortized, principally on a straight-line basis, over the estimated future 
periods to be benefited 5 to 10 years. On an annual basis, the Company reviews the recoverability of goodwill 
based primarily on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows from the acquired business. Accumulated 
amortization amounted to $1,103,000 and $364,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company reviews its property and equipment and unamortized intangible assets whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Company estimates 
the future cash flows expected to result from operations and if the sum of the expected undiscounted future 
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the long-lived asset, the Company recognizes an impairment loss 
by reducing the unamortized cost of. the long-lived asset to its estimated fair value. 

During the year ended December 31,1999, the Company recorded an impairment charge of telecommu- 
nications assets of $4,632,000. Impaired telecommunications assets consisted of software development costs, 
construction in progress, and inmate calling platform assets. Two events occurred in 1999 indicated that the 
carrying value of certain equipment and intangible assets may not be recoverable. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTE’S TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

~ (1) Summary o€ Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

‘,In September, 1999, the Company completed an evaluation of the future viability of its new inmate 
calling platform (“DL Platform”) which it had been developing over the past two years. The merger with 
Gateway allowed the Company to consider an alternative to the DL Platform. The Company determined that 
the Gateway ComBridge Platform (“Codridge”), would be the platform to install for both new customers 
and upgrades of existing customers. However, over the last year the Company had been awarded certain 
contracts where the DL Platform was to be deployed. Since the Company believes that it would not be cost 
effective to maintain and support two separate systems, the Company proceeded to renegotiate all existing 
contracts to install ComBridge instead of the DL Platform. During the quarter ended September 30,1999,  the^ 
Company successfully completed these negotiations. Due to the abandonment of the DL Platform, the 
Company no longer has any anticipated cash flow to support the canying value of assets related to the 
DL Platform. Capitalized costs relating to the DL Platform included software development costs, components 
(consisting of primarily telephony cards) and other supporting computer peripheral equipment. The estimated 
impairment, being the excess of the carrying amounts over the respective estimated fair value of these assets, 
is approximately $3,669,000 for the year ended December 31, 1999. As a result, software development costs at 
December 31, 1999 were impaired by $2,093,000 and construction in progress relating to these products was 
impaired by $1,576,000. All of these charges are applicable to the Corrections Division. 

In addition, the Company deployed a version of its old inmate calling platform that resides in its 
customer’s network locations. The Company has recently experienced a reduction in call volumes and 
revenues for this platform. The customer has indicated to the Company that it does not intend to use the 
platform as a source of future services. Additionally, since the platform was based on the predecessor to the 
DL Platform, there is not an upgrade path available for the new platform. Any new feature or service offering 
would be evaluated based on the new ComBridge Platform. The reduction in call volumes caused the 
estimated fair value of these assets to be less than the existing book value. The Company estimated the fair 
value of these assets based on the discounted cash flows from each service location. After consideration of 
minimal salvage value of these assets due to their specific use, the Company recorded an impairment charge of 
approximately $963,000. This charge was applicable to the Corrections Division. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue and expenses from telecommunications services and direct call provisioning are recognized at 
the time the telephone call is completed. Provision is made for uncollectible accounts in the period direct call 
provisioning revenue is recorded. Revenue from equipment sales is recognized when the equipment is shipped 
to customers. Internet services are recognized as the services are provided. The Company records deferred 
revenue for advance billings to customers, or prepayments by customers prior to the completion of installation 
or prior to the provision of contractual bandwidth usage. 

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of computer software in accordance with the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) , Statement of Position 97-2, “Software Revenue 
Recognition” (“SOP 97-2”), as amended by Statement of Position 98-4, “Deferral of the Effective Date of a 
Provision of SOP 97-2’’ (“SOP 98-4”). 

SOP 97-2 and SOP 98-4 generally require revenue earned on software arrangements involving multiple 
elements (i.e. software products, upgradedenhancements, post contract customers support, installation, 
training , etc.) to be allocated to each element based on the relative fair value of the elements. The fair value 
of an element must be recognized upon delivery of the product$. The revenue allocated to post contract 
customer support generally is recognized ratably over the term of the support and the revenue allocated to 
service elements (such as training and installation) generally is recognized as the services are performed. If a 
vendor does not have evidence of the fair value of all elements in a multiple-element arrangement, all revenue 
from the arrangement is deferred until such evidence exists or until all elements are delivered. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

In December 1998, the AICPA issued Statement of Position 98-9, “Modification of 97-2, Software 
Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions” (“SOP 98-9”). SOP 98-9 requires the use of 
the “residual method” for recognition of revenue when vendor-specific objective evidence exists for 
undelivered elements but does not exist for delivered elements of a software arrangement. The Company will 
be required to comply with the provisions of SOP 98-9 for transactions entered into beginning January 1,2000. 
The Company believes the adoption of SOP 98-9 will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial 
statements, results of operations or financial condition. 

‘ Research and Development 

,, Costs associated with the research and development of new technology or significantly altering existing 
technology are charged to operations as incurred. Software development costs have been accounted for in 
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer 
Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed. Under the standard, capitalization of software 
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility, subject to net realizable value 
considerations. Capitalized software costs are amortized over the economic useful life of the software product, 
which is generally estimated to be three years. 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) Statement of Position 98-1, 
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Development or Obtained for Internal Use (“SOP 98-1”) 
provides guidance for the accounting for computer software developed or obtained for internal use including 
the requirement to capitalize specified costs. There were no such costs capitalized pursuant to SOP 98-1 at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

401 ( k )  Plan 

The Company established a 401 (k) plan for all of its full time employees effective January 1, 1994. In 
June 1998, the Company implemented a matching program. The program calls for the Company to match 
25% of an employee’s contribution up to 6% of the individual employee’s total salary. Matching contributions 
and plan expenses were $1 1 1,000 for the year ended December 31, 1999 and were not significant for the year 
ended December 31, 1998. 

Income Taxes 

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Accordingly, 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in income tax 
rates is recognized in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. 

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share 

Earnings (loss) per common share are presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS 128). Basic earnings per share excludes 
dilution for common stock equivalents and is computed by dividing income or loss available to common 
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue 
common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. For the year ended December 31, 1999, 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTgS TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

- (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

375,000 common stock equivalents were not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation, as their 
effect would be anti-dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 diluted common and common 
equivalent shares outstanding includes 758,000 and 1,080,000, respectively of common share equivalents, 
consisting of stock options, determined under the treasury stock method. 

Stock Compensation 

The Company accounts for employee stock options under the provisions APB Opinion No. 25; 
‘2ccounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) .and has adopted the “disclosure only” alternative 
described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, ‘%counting for the Stock-Based 
Compensation (“SFAS 123”) , which requires pro forma disclosure of compensation expense using a fair 
value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans. 

Comprehensive Income 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 130, ‘Xeporting Comprehensive Income, ” (SFAS 130) 
establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components in a full. set of 
general-purpose financial statements. The objective of SFAS 130 is to report a measure of all changes in 
equity of an enterprise that result from transactions and other economic events of the period other than 
transactions with stockholders (“comprehensive income”). Comprehensive income is the total of the net 
income (loss) and all other non-owner changes in equity. For the year ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 
1997, the Company’s comprehensive earnings (loss) was equal to net earnings (loss). 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement 

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This 
statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain 
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives), and for hedging 
activities. The statement requires companies to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities, with the 
instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in fair value, gains or losses, depends on the 
intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation. In June, 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued SFAS 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Deferral of the 
Effective Date of FASB No. 133 -An amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS 137 defers the 
effective date of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years beginning after June 15,2000. The Company 
does not expect the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of 
operations. 

ReclassiFcation 

Certain amounts in the 1998 and 1997 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 1999 
presentation. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
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(2) Balance Sheet Components 

Accounts receivable consist of the following: 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

(amounts in thousands) 

Accounts receivable, net: 
Trade accounts receivable ...................................... $ 11,797 

7,268 Direct call provisioning receivable ............................... 
1,161 Customer reimbursable receivable ............................... 

Other receivables ............................................. 23 1 
20,457 

$ 16,868 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ......................... (3,589) 

$ 10,963 
6,190 
785 
547 

18,485 . 
( 1,996) 

$ 16,489 

Bad debt expense was $4,981,000, $4,930,000, and $3,785,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 
1998 and 1997, respectively. 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 
December 31, 

1999 1998 
(amounts in thousands) 

Property and equipment, net: 

........................................ 7,341 5,011 Construction in progress .............................................. 9,169 7,326 Office equipment 
7 1,997 64,4 1 2 

$ 33,858 $ 31,498 

Telecommunications equipment .................................. $ 55,487 $ 52,075 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization. ................ (38,139) (32,914) 

Intangible and other assets consist of'the following: 
December 31, 

(amounts io thousands) 
1999 1998 . - -  

Intangible and other assets, net: 
Patent license rights ............................................. $ 3,325 $ 3,325 

65 1 1,821 
1,726 
2,525 
505 ........................................................ 1,793 Other. - -  1,649 

13,661 11,695 

$ 9,252 $ 8,736 

Purchased technology assets ...................................... 2,487 
Capitalized software development costs. ............................ 
Acquired software technologies ................................... 1,783 
Patent defense and application costs ............................... 
Deposits and long-term prepayments. .............................. 

2,583 
1,183 

Less: Accumulated amortization ................................ (4,409) (2,959) 

= -  
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(2) Balance Sheet Components - (continued) 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following: 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

(amounts in thousands) 

Accrued liabilities: 
......................... Deferred revenue and customer advances $. 2,114 $ 1,228 

Compensation related 1,175 1,292 
..................................................... 3,157 Other.. 4,317 

$ 7,606 $ 5,677 

......................................... 

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions 

Gateway 

On June 14,1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway, by exchanging 3,672,234 shares of its 
common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Each share of Gateway was exchanged for 
5.0375 shares of T-NETIX common stock. Outstanding Gateway stock options were also converted at the 
same exchange factor into options to purchase approximately 379,000 shares of T-NETIX common stock. 

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375,341 shares of common stock 
to certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for terminating a royalty agreement. The royalty agreement 
related to automated call processing technology and intellectual property rights that were assigned to Gateway . 
by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The termination of the royalty owners’ interests 
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been recorded at fair value, or $2,487,000. The 
fair value is based on the value of T-NETIX common stock at February 10, 1999 (date of the Merger 
Agreement), or $6.625, times the number of shares issued in exchange for termination of the royalty owners’ 
interests. The intangible asset has been recorded in patent license rights and has an estimated useful life of 
10 years, the remaining term of the underlying patent. 

Selected financial data of T-NETIX and Gateway, prior to the merger were as follows: 
Years Ended 
December 31, Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
1999 1998 1997 

(amounts in thousands) 

Revenue: 
T-NETIX .................................. $ 8,669 $ 38,008 I $ 36,292 
Gateway .................................... 9,115 30,233 26,013 
. Combined ........... .; ................... $ 17,784 $ 68,241 $ 62,305 

T-NETIX .................................. $ (1,077) $ 394 $ 591 
Net earnings (loss): 

Gateway. .................... : .............. 245 (124) 1,154 
Combined (832) $ $ 270 $ 1,745 

Transactions between T-NETIX and Gateway prior to the merger consisted of revenue from a cross- 
licensing agreement. All such amounts have been eliminated in the restated consolidated financial statements. 
There were no material adjustments required to conform the accounting policies of the two companies. 

................................ 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions - (continued) 

Certain reclassifications were made to the Gateway financial statements to conform to T-NETIX’s 
presentations. 

In connection with the merger, the Company incurred merger transaction expenses of $1,017,000 for the 
year ended December 31, 1999. Merger transaction expenses consisted primarily of fees for investment 
bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related charges. 

Evans and Ricker Acquisition 

Effective October 28, 1999, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of 
Evans and Ricker (“E&R”), of Portland, Oregon. E&R specialize in software used to control and manage 
information for correctional facilities. E&R’s product, Lock and Track Corrections Information System 
(“Lock & Track””) is a comprehensive relational database designed to handle the operational control and 
reporting needs of municipal, state, federal, and/or private correctional facilities. The purchase price was 
approximately $1.4 million including acquisition costs. The acquisition has been accounted for using the 
purchase method of accounting. The results of operations associated with the assets acquired are included in 
the Company’s financial statements beginning November 1, 1999. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
have been recorded at their fair values. The assets acquired were cash, accounts receivable and intangibles. 
The estimated excess .of cost over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired of approximately 
$1.3 million was allocated principally to goodwill, which will be amortized on a straight line basis over 7 years. 
The remaining net assets acquired were primarily current assets (cash and accounts receivable) net of current 
liabilities (accounts payable and accrued liabilities). The acquisition was funded by borrowings under the 
Company’s line of credit. Pro forma information giving effect to this acquisition has been omitted as the pro 
forma results do not vary materially from the Company’s recorded results, as E&R’s operations were not 
significant in 1998 or 1997. 

(4) SpealcEZ Operations 

‘In December 1998, the Company began an evaluation of the SpeakEZ Division and determined that the 
best course of action was to combine its research and development operations previously located in 
New Jersey with its corporate operations in Englewood, Colorado. This change coincided with the resignation 
of the Company’s former chief executive officer on December 9, 1998. This individual spent a majority of his 
time in the SpeakEZ Division. For the five months ended December 31, 1998, the Company charged the cost 
of the severance agreement or approximately $240,000 to SpeakEZ selling, general and administrative 
expense. 

The Company completed the reorganization of SpeakEZ operations in February 1999. The reorganiza- 
tion also included a change in the marketing strategy from a direct customer sales strategy to a technology 
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets a specifically developed software product to a 
specific, end user customer. The strategy is then to find other specific customers who have similar operating 
systems and market this product to them. In contrast, a technology licensing strategy focuses on a larger scale 
customer who can integrate the SpeakEZ software product into its existing product line. This larger customer, 
such as a computer manufacturer, is then responsible for the product integration and ultimate delivery to the 
end user customer. 

The change in marketing approach noted above required the Company to evaluate future marketability of 
all products in the SpeakEZ Division. As a result of this evaluation, management, determined that the 
capitalized cost for SpeakEZ products, some of which would no longer be marketed, exceeded their estimated 
realizable value. For the five months ended December 31, 1998, the Company incurred’a charge of $490,000 
for a reduction in the carrying value of such capitalized costs to their estimated net realizable value. . 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

~ (4) SpeakEZ Operations (continued) 

The Company also recognized a loss in the SpeakEZ Division on a note receivable made to a venture 
partner for $300,000. In December 1998, the venture partner notified the Company that its plans to raise 
capital prior to January 1999 were not progressing according to plan and as a result it would not be able to 
meet its obligations as they became due. 

(5) Debt 

Debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is suqmarized as follows: 
December 31, 

1999 1998 
(amounts in thousands) 

Debt: 
Bank lines of credit ........................................... 
Notes payable to stockholders .................................. 
Notes payable to banks ........................................ 
Other ....................................................... 

Advances on direct call processing. .............................. 

Less current portion.. ....................................... 
Non current portion ......................................... 

$ 28,461 - 
- 

‘ 460 
28,921 
7,366 

$ 21,555 

$ 16,972 
2,531 
4,800 

625 
5 82 

25,510 
21,353 

$ 4,157 

In September 1999, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Credit 
Facility”) with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility provides for maximum credit of $40,000,000 subject 
to limitations based on financial covenant calculations. The Credit Facility is comprised of a one year LIBOR 
component of $15,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% at December 31, 1999; a three month 
LIBOR component of $10,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% at December 31, 1999; and 
$3,461,000 a l  the Bank’s prime rate, 8.5% at December 31, 1999. As of December 31, 1999, the interest rate 
on borrowings under the line of credit ranged from 8.50% to 8.87%. The Company also pays a fee of 0.30% per 
annum on the unused portion of the line of credit. 

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Under the terms of 
the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios and other financial covenants. 
These ratios include a debt to a four quarter rolling earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and 
amortization (EBITDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (interest and debt payments) to EBITDA, and 
minimum quarterly EBITDA. The Agreement also prohibits the Company from incurring additional 
indebtedness. 

At December 31,1999 the Company was in violation of certain covenants and the Company has received 
a waiver from its lenders relating to various covenant violations. In connection with the waiver, the lenders 
agreed to revise the existing covenant requirements if the Company can raise $7 million of additional financing 
on or before April 14,2000. The funds raised are required to be used to reduce the outstanding balance on the 
Credit Facility. The terms of the bank dictate that $7 million of the Credit Facility is due April 14,2000 with 
the remaining balance of the facility due April 30, 2001. The amount of credit under the Credit facility 
available to the Company is dependent upon our financial performance and may be less than $40 million. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSODATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(6) Stockholders’ Equity 
Stock Option Plans 

The Company has reserved 3,850,000 shares of common stock for employees and non-employee directors 
under various stock option plans (collectively the “Plans”): the 1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan (“the 1991 
IS0 Plan”); the 1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (“the 1991 NSO Plan”); and the 1993 Incentive 
Stock Option Plan (“the 1993 IS0 Plan”). The Plans provide for issuing both incentive stock options, and 
non-qualified stock options, which must be granted at not less than 100% of the fair market value of the stock 
on the date of grant. All options to date have been granted at the fair market value of the stock as determined 
by the Board of‘birectors. Options issued prior to 1994 had vesting terms of one to three years from the date of 
grant. Substantially all of the Incentive Stock Options issued after 1993 vest over four years from the date of 
grant. The options expire ten years from the date of grant. 

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity, and related information through December 31, 1999 
is as follows: 

Options Outstanding 
Weighted 
Average 

Shares Available Number of Exercise 
for Grant Shares Price 

Balance at January 1, 1997.. ........................ 476,163 2,513,957 $ 4.55 
Granted ........................................ (1 11,500) 111,500 $ 8.61 

(281,200) $ 2.67 Exercised ....................................... - 
Canceled 96,875 (96,875) $ 6.83 ....................................... 

Balance at December 31, 1997.. ..................... 
Granted ........................................ 
Exercised ....................................... 
Canceled ....................................... 

Balance at December 31, 1998.. ..................... 
. Granted. ....................................... 

Exercised. ...................................... 
Canceled ....................................... 

461,538 2,241,382 $ 4.88 
(246,619) 246,619 $ 5.24 

- (77,477) $ 2.86 
166,000 (166,000) $ 6.45 

380,919 2,250,524 $ 4.88 
(223,800) 223,800 $ 5.34 

- (98,425) $ 2.61 
456,769 (456,769) $ 6.92 

Balance at December 31, 1999.. ..................... 613,888 1,919,130 $ 4.56 

The range, of exercise prices for common stock options outstanding and options exercisable at Decem- 
ber 31, 1999 is as follows: 

Options Outstanding 
Weighted 
Average Weighted 

Remaining Average 
Range of Number of Contractual Exercise 
Exercise Price- Shares Life Price- 

$ 1.61 307,490 6.7 years $ 1.61 
$ 3.00-$4.11 154,090 4.4 years $ 3.32 
$ 4.12-$5.48 222,800 9.2 years $ 5.08 
$ 5.49-$7.24 455,525 6.2 years $ 5.58 
$ 7.25 394,750 6.1 years $ 7.25 
$ 7.26-$10.99 53,000 7.9 years $ 9.07 
$1 1.00-$13.71 50,000 6.0 years $13.44 
$ 0.20-$13.7 1 1,919,130 5.8 years $ 4.56 

$ 0.20 281,475 1.3 years $ 0.20 

Options Exercisable 
Weighted 

Number of 
Shares 

3 281,475 
307,490 
136,590 
30,000 
369,025 
359,875 
36,750 
46,250 

1,567,455 

Average 
Exercise 

Price 
$ 0.20 
$ 1.61 
$ 3.25 
$ 5.04 
$ 5.50 
$ 7.25 
$ 9.12 
$13.64 
$ 4.31 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

- (6)  Stockholders’ Equity (continued) 
. I s  

The Company has not recorded compensation expense for stock options granted. The Company h a  
computed the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS 123 for stock options granted using the Black- 
Scholes option-pricing model. The assumptions are as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 
1999 199A 1007 -__- * S I ,  _ _ _ _  

Risk free interest rate.. ................................ 5.43% . 5.24% 5.24% 
Expected dividend yield ................................ - 
Expected volatility. .................................... 70.0% 70.0% 70.0% 

- - 
Expected lives (in years) ............................... 
Weighted average remaining contractual l i e  of options 

outstanding.. ........................................ 5.8 years 4.9 years 5.2 years 
Weighted average fair value at grant date $3.24 $2.35 $4.11 

The pro forma effects of applying SFAS 123 are as follows for the years ended December 31,1999, 1998, 

5.2 years 5.0 years 4.9 years 

................. 

and 1997: 
Year Ended December 31, 

(amount in thousands) 
1998 1997 1999 - - 

Net earnings (loss): 
As reported .............................................. $(10,247) $ 270 $1,745 
Pro forma.. .............................................. (11,118) (847) 620 
Net earnings (loss) per common share: 
As reported 

Basic ................................................ $ (0.82) $ 0.02 $ 0.15 
Diluted .............................................. (0.82) 0.02 0.13 

Basic.. .............................................. $ (0.89) $(0.07) $ 0.05 
Diluted .............................................. (0.89) (0.07) 0.05 

Pro forma: 

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded 
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option-pricing models require 
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s 
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because 
changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s 
opinion, the existing models to not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its 
employee stock options. 

In July, 1997, the Board of Directors amended the 1993 IS0 Plan and the 1991 NSO Plan to provide that 
the Compensation Committee may amend certain outstanding options with an exercise price in excess of the 
current market price in order to modify the exercise price to the current market price or greater. On 
August 11, 1997, the Compensation Committee re-priced the exercise price to $7.25 per share for certain 
outstanding options under the 1993 IS0 Plan and the 1991 NSO Plan having an exercise price equal to or 
greater than $7.50 prior to such re-pricing. This re-pricing affected 773,500 options granted under these Plans. 
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. ‘ j  T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(7) Segment Information 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and 
Related Information, (“S FAS 131”) establishes standards for tha way public enterprises report information 
about operating segments in annual financial statements. SFAS 131 also establishes standards €or disclosures 
about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. 

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the SpeakEZ Division, and 
Internet Services Division. The Company evaluates performance based on earnings (loss) before income 
taxes.’ Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortization, and interest expense. 
There are no intersegment sales. The Company’s reportable segments are specific business units that offer 
different products and services. They are managed separately because each business requires different 
technology and marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those 
described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Segment information is as follows: 

Yean Ended December 31, 
1999 1998 1997 

Revenue from external customers: 
Corrections Division ................................. 
SpeakEZ Division.. ................................. 
Internet Services Division ............................ 

Corrections Division ................................. 
Internet Services Division ............................ 

Corrections Division ................................. 
. SpeakEZ Division. .................................. 

Internet Services Division ............................ 

Corrections Division ................................. 
SpeakEZ Division .................................... 
Internet Services Division ............................ 

Corrections Division ............... i ..... ; ........... 
SpeakEZ Division.. .................... : ............ 
Internet Services Division ............................ 

Revenue from external customers : ....................... 
Depreciation and amortization. ........................ 
Interest and other (income) expense, net. ............... 
Segment earnings (loss) before tax .................... 

Operating income (loss) : 

SpeakEZ Division ................................... 

Depreciation and amortization 

Interest and other income (expense) 

. .  

. .  Segment earnings (loss) before tax: ’. - 

Segment earnings (loss) before tax: 

Operating income (loss) ............................. 

$ 71,596 $ 67,609 $ 61,629 
93 632 676 

1,546 - - 

$ (5,796) $ 6,816 $ 7,031 
(23 18) (3,996) (2,664) 

104 - - 

$ 10,651 $ 9,250 $ 8,841 
969 924 705 

$ (8,029) 
(3,439 1 

104 

$ 73,235 

11,620 
. 2,137 , 

(1 1,364) 

(8,210) 

$ 5,054 $ 5,815 
’ (4,588) (3,031) - - 

$ 68,241 $ 62,305 

10,174 . 9,546 
2,354 1,583 

466 2,784 

2,820 j .  4,367 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

. (7) Segment Information - (continued) 
December 31, 

1999 1998 - - - -  - - 
(amounts in thousands) 

Segment assets: 
Corrections Division.. ....................................... $ 66,943 $ 60,880 
..SpeakEZ Division 3,599 4,599 
Internet Sewices Division .................................... 

.......................................... 
- . -  

Substantially all of the Company's reportable segment revenue is derived within the United States. 
Revenue as a percentage of total revenue attributable to significant customers for the years ended 
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is as follows: 

1999 1998 1998 - - -  
AT&T ........................................................... 13% 16% 19% 
Bell Atlantic ...................................................... 10 12 12 
SBC Communications ......... .: ................................... 10 12 13 

There was no intersegment revenue for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997. Unallocated 
amounts to arrive at net earnings (loss) included income tax expense (benefit) of $( 1,117,000), $196,000, and 
$1,039,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Consolidated total assets 
included eliminations of approximately $12,976,000 and $11,084,000 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. Eliminations consist of intercompany receivables in the Corrections Division and intercompany 
payables in the SpeakEZ Division related solely to intercompany borrowing of the SpeakEZ Division. 

(8) Income Taxes 

thousands) : 
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is as follows (amounts in 

1998 1997 -- 1999 

Current: 
Federal ............................................... $ (1,007) $ 186 $ 439 
State ................................................. (191) 25 30 

Total ............................................. (1,198) 21 1 469 

Federal ................................................ 72 (55) 516 
State .............. : ........................ ;. ........... 40 54 ' 9  

. Total ............................................... 81 (15) 570 
.................. $ (1,117) $ 196 $ 1,039. 

-- 
Deferred 

-- . .  

- -  Total income tax expense (benefit) 
. .  
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T-NET& INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

’NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(8) Income Taxes (continued) 

Income taxes differ from the expected statutory income tax benefit, by applying the US federal income 
tax rate of 34% to pretq earnings for the years ended December 31,1999,1998 and 1997 due to the following: 

1998 1997 -- 1999 

Expected statutory income ta i  (benefit) expense ............. $ .(3,864) $ 273 $ 947 
Amounts not deductible for income tax ..................... 699 1 07 97 
State taxes, net of federal benefit.. ......................... (377) 43 55 
Change in valuation allowance.. ........................... 2,263 (113) 
Other. ................................................. 162 (114) (60) 
Total income tax expense (benefit). ........................ $ (1,117) $ 196 $ 1,039 

- 

- -  
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred income tax 

assets and deferred income tax liabilities as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 are presented below: 

1999 1998 
(amounts in thousands) 
- -  

Deferred income tax assets: 

Allowance for doubtful accounts .................................... 1,488 716 
Other.. ......................................................... 680 45 8 
Total gross deferred income tax assets ............................... 8,724 6,580 

4,997 5,116 

Net operating loss carryforwards .................................... $ 6,556 $ 5,406 

Less valuation allowance ........................................... (3,727) (1,464) 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 
Intangible assets, due to difference in book/tax basis ................... (474) (1,068) 
-Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation.. ... (2,523) 

Total gross deferred tax liabilities ................................... (2,700) (4,154) 

(1,867) 
Other assets, due to differences in book/tax basis.. .................... (359) . (563) 

$ 2,297 $ 962 

At December 31, 1999, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes aggregating 
approximately $17.4 million which, if not utilized to reduce taxable income in future periods, expire at various 
dates through the year 2010. Approximately $1.3 million of the net operating loss carryforwards are subject to 
certain rules limiting their annual usage. The Company believes these annual limitations will not ultimately 
affect the Company’s ability to use substantially all of its net operating loss carryforwards for income tax 
purposes. 

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or the entire net 
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company has offset a portion of its deferred tax assets with a 
valuation allowance. The valuation allowance will be adjusted in the future based on the Company’s projected 
taxable income. 

The exercise of stock options, which have been granted under the Company’s 1991 NSO stock option 
plan gives rise to compensation which is included in the taxable income of the applicable option holder and is 
deductible by the Company for federal and state income tax purposes. The income tax benefit associated with 
the exercise of the NSO options is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital when realized. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTE’S TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(9) Commitments and contingencies 

The Company leases office space under operating lease agreements. Rent expense under operating lease 
agreements for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 was approximately $1,034,000, $930,000, 
and $629,000, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements for each of the next 
five years are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Year ending December 31: 
2000 ................................................ ..... $ 976 
2001 ..................................................... 72 1 
2002 .................................................... 229 
2003 .................................................... 5 

$1,93 1 Total minimum lease payments. ....................... 

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings of a nature considered normal to its business. It is 
the Company’s policy to accrue amounts related to these legal matters if it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred an amount that is reasonable estimable. In the opinion of management, all matters are of such a 
nature as would not have a material affect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows of the Company if resolved unfavorably. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, December 31, 
2nlm lQQ0 _ _ _ _  -___ 
(Amounts in Thousands) 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents.. ........................ i . .  ................... 
Accounts receivable, net .................................................. 
Prepaid expenses ....................................................... 
Inventories ............................................................ 

Total current assets ............................................. 
Property and equipment, net .............................................. 
Goodwill, net .......................................................... 
Deferred tax asset ...................................................... 
Intangible and other assets, net.. .......................................... 

$ 298 
18,009 
1,569 

525 
20,401 
37,454 
6,035 
2,243 
8,497 

$ 118 
16,459 
1,038 

710 
18,325 
33,858 
6,401 
2,297 
9,252 

Total assets. ................................................... $74,630 $70,133 

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTLBLE PREFERRED STOCK 
AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable. .................................................... $ 15,810 $ 13,187 
Accrued liabilities .................................................... 4,7 15 5,924 
Current portion of long term debt ....................................... 30,659 7,366 

Total current liabilities .......................................... 5 1,184 26,477 
Long-term debt ...................................................... 77 21,555 

Total liabilities ................................................. 51,261 48,032 
Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock, $1,000 per share, stated value, 

3,750 shares authorized; issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000; liquidation 
preference of $3,811,000 at June 30, 2000 ................................ 
Common stock, $.01 stated value, 70,000,000 shares authorized; 12,733,084 and 

12,699,400 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000 and December 31, 
1999, respectively .................................................. 127 1 27 

Additional paid-in capital .............................................. 37,566 35,791 

Stockholders' equity: 

Accumulated deficit.. ................................................. (16,166) (13,817) 
Total stockholders' equity ........................................ 21,527 22,101 

stock and stockholders' equity ........................................ $74,630 $70,133 

Commitments and contingencies 
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred 

1,842 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(Unaudited) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 2000 1999 
(Amounts in Thousands, Except 

Per Share Amounts) 

---- 

Revenue: 
Telecommunications services ............................... $1 1,953 $10,065 $22,077 $19,879 
Direct call provisioning ................................... 7,247 7,021 14,492 13,523 

- 12,561 - Internet services ......................................... 6,743 
660 1,208 2,128 

Total revenue. ..................................... 26,769 17,746 50,338 35,530 

Telecommunications services ............................. 5,360 4,263 9,861 8,506 
Direct call provisioning ................................. 6,75 1 6,468 13,268 12,548 

- 10,648 - Internet services ....................................... 5,550 
332 214 549 879 

Total operating costs. ............................... 17,993 10,945 34,326 21,933 
Selling, general and administrative .......................... 4,583 3,259 8,321 6,619 
Research and development ................................. 1,569 1,253 2,744 2,6 13 
Depreciation and amortization .............................. 3,117 2,848 6,166 5,670 

Total expenses.. ................................... 27,262 18,305 51,557 36,835 
Operating loss ................................... (493) (559) (1,219) (1,305) 

Interest and other expense, net. ............................... (673) (633) (1,027) (1,117) 

Income tax benefit (expense) ................................. (103) 810 (103) 1,398 
Net loss.. ......................................... (1,269) (1,209) (2,349) (2,041) 

Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock.. .. (430) 
Net loss applicable to common stock .................. $(1,699) $(1,209) $(2,779) $(2,041) 

Basic and diluted loss per common share. ...................... $ (0.13) $ (0.10) $ (0.22) $ (0.17) 

common share.. ......................................... 12,701 12,372 12,756 12,318 

............................... 826 Equipment sales and other.. ---- 
---- 

Expenses: 
Operating costs: 

......................... ---- Cost of equipment sold and other 

---- 
---- 

Merger transaction expenses. ................................. - (827) - (1,017) 

Loss before income taxes ............................ (1,166) (2,019) (2,246) (3,439) 

- (430) - 
--- 
---- 

Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per 
---- ---- 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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T.NETM. INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Unaudited) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net loss ................................................................. 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization ............................................. 
Gain on sale of property and equipment .................................... 
Accktion of discount on subordinated note payable .............. : ............. 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Deferred income tax benefit .............................................. 

Accounts receivable. net ............................................... 
Prepaid expenses ...................................................... 

.. Inventories ........................................................... 
Intangibles and other assets ............................................. 

.. Accounts payable ..................................................... . Accrued liabilities .................................................... 
Cash provided by operating activities ........................... i ... ; ... 

Purchase of property and equipment .......................................... 
Cash used in investing activities: 

. Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment .............................. 
Other investing activities ................................................... 

Cash used in investing activities ....................................... 

Net proceeds from (payments on) line of credit ................................ 
Proceeds from debt ....................................................... 
Payments of debt ......................................................... 
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock. net ............... 
Common stock issued for cash under option plans ...... 1 ....................... 

Cash provided by financing activities ................................... 
Net increase in cash Bnd cash equivalents ........................................ 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .................................. 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ...................................... 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

. .  

Cash paid for interest ........................................................ 
Cash paid for income taxes ................................................... 

Six Months Ended 
June 30. 

(Amounts in 
Thousands) 

.. 2000 1!M9 

6. 166 5. 670 
54 (1. 398) 

(265) - 
(17) - 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements . 
. . .  
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5. 349 
180 
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$ 298 
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$ 103 

3. 390 
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256 
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678 

- 
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$ 1. 088 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Unaudited) , .  

8 .. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Unaudited Financial ‘Statements 

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments which, in the opinion 
of management, are necessary to reflect a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations of 
T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) for the interim periods presented. All adjustments, in the opinion 
of management, are of a normal and recurring nature. Some adjustments involve estimates, which may require 
revision in subsequent interim periods or at year-end. The financial statements have been presented in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. Refer to notes to consolidated financial statements, which appear 
in the 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Company’s accounting policies, which are pertinent to these 
statements. 

. 

Basis of Presentation 

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. (“Gateway”), a 
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As a result of the merger, Gateway became a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to- the merger, the Company changed its year-end from July 3 1 to December 3 1. 
Gateway’s year-end was December 3 1. 

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests. As a result, the Company’s financial statements have 
been restated to combine Gateway’s financial statements as if the merger had occurred at the beginning of the 
earliest period presented. Information concerning common stock and per share data has been restated on an 
equivalent share basis. 

Liquidity 

The Company incurred losses from continuing operations in the three and six months ended June 30,2000 
of $1.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively and had a working capital deficit of $30.8 million at June 30,2000. 
In July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended the Company’s credit agreement to revise certain financial 
covenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2001, and as a result the debt with the bank has been 
classified as a current liability. The Company raised $7.5 million of additional financing in April 2000. The 
financing consisted of preferred stock and subordinated debt. The net proceeds of approximately $7.2 million 
were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. 

The Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations, including renegotiating contract pricing 
and cost control measures, in order to carry out the remainder of its fiscal 2000 business plan. However, there can 
be no assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from operations &d the Company 
may require additional financing to fund operations. In the event additional financing is required, the Company 
may not be able to obtain financing on terms acceptable to the Company and it may have to curtain operations. 

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share 

Earnings (loss) per common share is presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS 128). Basic earnings per share excludes the impact of 
potentially dilutive securities and is computed by dividing income or loss available to common shareholders by 
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect 
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or 
converted into common stock. There is no difference between basic and diluted net loss per share since ‘ 
potentially dilutive securities from the conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock and the exercises of 
options and warrants are anti-dilutive for all periods presented. The calculations of diluted net loss per common 
share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, do not include 991,000 and 748,000 and 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

.- 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 

385,000 and 424,000, respectively, of potentially dilutive securities, including common stock options and 
warrants and redeemable convertible prefenred stock. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued interpretation No. 44 
“Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation - an interpretation of APB Opinion 
No. 25 (“FIN 44”). This interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for certain stock option transactions 
and subsequent amendments to stock option transactions. FIN 44 is effective July 1, 2000, but certain provisions 
cover specific events that occur after either December 15, 1998 or January 12, 2000. The Company does not 
expect that the application of FIN 44 will have a material effect on its financial position or results of operations. 

In December 1999, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in 
Financial Statements”, which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation, and disclosure of revenue in 
financial statements filed with the SEC. Subsequently, the SEC released SAB 101A, which delayed the 
implementation date of SAB 101 for the Company until the quarter ended December 31, 2000. The Company 
does not expect the application of SAB 101 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of 
operations. 

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended 
by SFAS No. 137. SFAS 137 defers the effective date of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative 
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as 
derivatives), and for hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires companies to recognize all derivatives as either assets 
or liabilities, with the instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in fair value, gains or 
losses, depends on the intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation. The Company does not expect 
the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations. 

Reclassification 

Certain amounts in the 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2000 presentation. 

(2) Balance Sheet Components 

Accounts receivable consist of the following: 

June 30, December 31, 

(Amounts in Thousands) 
u”) 1999 

Accounts receivable, net: 
Trade accounts receivable ........................................ $13,684 
Direct call provisioning receivable. ................................ 5,343 
Customer reimbursable receivable .................................... 377 

. 19,617 

$18,009 

Other receivables ............................................... ’ 213. 

, .  Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts . :. .................... (1,608) 

$11,797 
7,268 . 

752 
231 

20,048 
(3,589) 

$16,459 



T-NEW, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(2) -Balance Sheet Com&nents - (Continued) 

Bad debt expense was- $1.5 million and $1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively, and $2.8 million and $2.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Property and equipment consists of the following: 

June 30, December 31, 
2000 1999 

(Amounts in Thousands) 

Property and equipment, net: 
Telecommunications equipment ................................. $60,160 $55,487 
Construction in progress ....................................... 8,129 7,341 
Office equipment ............................................. 10,696 9,169 

78,985 7 1,997 

' $ 37,454 $ 33,858 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ (41,531) (38,139) 

Intangible and other assets consist of the following: 

June 30, December 31, 

(Amounts in Thousands) 
2000 1999 

Intangible and other assets, net: 
Patent license rights ............................................... : ... 
Purchased technology assets. ............................................. 
Capitdized software development costs ................................... 
Acquired software technologies ............................................ 
Patent defense and application costs ...................................... 
Deposits and long-term prepayments ...................................... 
Other ....... ........................................................ 

Less: Accumulated amortization ................................... 
. .  

$ 3,325 
2,487 
663 

1,791 
2,579 
1,512 
1,386 
13,743 
(5,246) 

$ 8,497 

$ 3,325 
2,487 
65 1 

1,783 
2,583 
1,183 
1,649 
13,661 
(4,409) 

$ 9,252 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following: 

Jnne 30, December 31, 

(Amounts in Thousands) 
20lM 1999 

Accrued liabilities: 
Deferred revenue and customer advances ................................... $1,667 $2,114 

Other 2,173 - 
Compensation related ................................................... 875 1,175 

................................................................ 2,635 
$4,715 - $5,924 - - - 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(3) Debt 

Debt consists of the following: 
June 30, December 31, 

(Amounts in Thousands) 
2000 1999 

Debt: 
Bank lines of credit ........................................... $26,704 $28,461 

Other ....................................................... 282 460 

Less current portion ........................................... 30,659 7,366 
Noncurrent portion ...................................... $ 77 $21,555 

- Subordinated note payable ...................................... 3,750 

30,736 28,921 ‘ 

Bank Line of Credit 

In September 1999, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Credit 
Facility”) with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility provides for maximum credit of $40 million subject to 
limitations based on financial covenant calculations. The Credit Facility is comprised of a one year LIBOR 
component of $15 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.0% at June 30, 2000; a one month LIBOR 
component of $7 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.0% at June 30,2000, and $4.7 million at the Bank‘s 
prime rate, 9.5% at June 30, plus 1.25%. As of June 30, 2000, the total interest rates on borrowings under the 
bank Credit Facility ranged from 8.8% to 10.75%. The Company also pays a fee of 0.40% per annum on the 
unused portion of the line of credit. 

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Under the terms of the 
Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios and other financial covenants. These 
ratios include a debt to a four quarter rolling earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (interest and debt payments) to EBITDA, and minimum quarterly 
EBITDA. The agreement also prohibits the Company from incurring additional indebtedness. 

In July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended its credit agreement to provide for revised financial 
covenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2001 and as a result the debt with the bank has been 
classified as a current liability. The Company raised $7.5 million of additional financing in April 2000. The net 
proceeds were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. As of June 30,2000, the Company is 
in compliance with all terms of the agreement with the lenders, The maximum amount of credit under the credit 
facility available to the Company is dependent upon the Company’s financial performance. Based on the financial 
covenants, the Company’s maximum borrowings at June 30, 2000 are less than $40 million. ‘ 

Subordinated Note Payable 

The Company issued a subordinated note payable of $3.75 million, due April 30, 2001, to a director and 
significant shareholder of the Company. The note bears interest at prime rate plus one percent per annum,(lOS% 
at June 30, 2000) which is payable every six months beginning in October 2000. The lender dso received 
warrants to purchase 25,OOO shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.05 per share for a period of five 
years. The estimated fair value of the stock purchase warrants, using the Black-Scholes model, has been recorded 
as deferred financing fees and is being amortized over the term of the debt. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(4) Stockholders Equity I.jt 

Preferred Stock Offering‘ 

In April ZOOO, the Company issued 3,750 shares of our Series A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock 
and a five-year stock purchase warrant exercisable for 340,909 shares at $6.60 per share of the Company’s 
common stock to RGC International Investors, LLC, a fund managed by Rose Glen Capital Management LP. The 
Company allocated the fair value of the warrants ($1.1 million) to additional paid-in capital and recognized a 
discount on the preferred shares issued. The net proceeds from the issuance were $3.5 million, net of offering 
costs. The Company also issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock to the broker on the sale of 
the preferred stock at an exercise price of $6.60 per share. The stock purchase warrants were valued at fair value 
($163,000) using the Black-Scholes model and are being amortized as accretion of discount on preferred stock 
over the term of the preferred stock. 

The preferred stock is convertible into common stock at a variable conversion price based on the closing 
market price of the common stock during a pricing period of 5 consecutive trading days during the 22 consecutive 
trading days preceding conversion, up to a “fixed” conversion price. The fixed conversion price is the lower of 
$6.05 per share or 110% of the market price of the Company’s common stock for 10 days ending on August 17, 
2000 if it is below $6.05. With limited exceptions relating to a change in controI of the Company, during the six 
month period after the issuance of the preferred stock, the preferred stock is not convertible into the common 
stock unless the market price of the common stock equals or exceeds the fixed conversion price. After the six- 
month period, the Company has the right repurchase the preferred stock upon receipt of notice to convert the 
preferred shares into common stock, if the market price of the common stock is less that the fixed conversion 
price. 

The preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the Company, subject to certain restrictions, if the market 
price of the Company’s common stock is less than or equal to $4.00 for 10 consecutive days. The redemption is 
subject to notice requirements. The cash redemption price is the greater of 120% of the liquidation preference, or 
a value based on the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the preferred stock 
multiplied by the highest closing price of the common stock during a period from notice of redemption until the 
redemption date. Redemption of the preferred stock is mandatory at its maturity date, April 17, 2003; upon 
assignment of all‘assets of the Company; bankruptcy; failure to maintain a Nasdaq listing; or failure to meet 
certain other terms set forth in the preferred stock agreements. 

* 

The preferred stock is non-voting and pays no dividends. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding 
up of the Company, or major transaction, including merger or sale or disposal of 50% of the company, the holders 
of the preferred stock are entitled to a liquidation preference of 8% per annum. 

The Company accounted for these transactions in accordance with ETIF 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible 
Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios.” The company 
recognized an increase in additional paid in capital in the amount of $771,000 for the value of the beneficial 
conversion. The Company will accrete the resulting discount in the preferred stock to loss applicable to common 
stockholders over the six-month period beginning April 17, 2000. 

(5) Segment Information 

Internet Services Division. The Company evaluates performance based on earnings (loss) before income taxes. ‘ 
Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortization, and interest expense. There are no . 
intersegment sales. The Company’s reportable segments are specific business units that offer different products 
and services. They are managed separately because each business requires different technology and marketing 
strategies. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of 

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the SpeakEZ Division, and the 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
N'OTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(5) Segment Information - (Continued) 

significant accounting policies. Segment information for the three and six months ended June 30,2000 and 1999 
is as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 2000 1999 
REVENUE FROM EXTERNAL, CUSTOMERS: 

Corrections Division .............................. 
Internet Services Division ......................... 
SpeakJZZ Division ................................ 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS): 
Corrections Division .............................. 
Internet Services Division ......................... 
SpeakEZ Division ................................ 

-- 

I 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION: 
Corrections Division .............................. 
SpeakEZ Division ................................ 
Internet Services Division ......................... 

$20,006 $17,712 $37,677 $35,471 
20 34 100 59 

6,743 - 12,561 - 
---- $26,769 $17,746 $50,338 $35,530 
---- 
---- 
$(1,149) $ 15 $(2,203) $ 64 

(538) (574) (928) (1,369) 
1,194 - 1,912 - 

$ (493) $ (559) $(1,219) $(1,305) I 

---- 
---- ---- 
$ 2,887 $ 2,611 $ 5,699 $ 5,173 

230 237 467 497 

---- $ 3,117 $ 2,848 $ 6,166 $ 5,670 ---- 
INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSE, NET: 

Corrections Division.. ............................ $ (367) $ (426) $ (442) $ (703) 
SpeakEZ Division ................................ (306) (207) (585) (414) - - - - ---- ......................... Internet Services Division 

$ (673) $ (633) $(1,027) $(1,117) - - _ _ _ -  
SEGMENT EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME 
TAXES: 

Corrections Division .............................. $ (1,516) $(1,238) $ (2,645) $ (1,656) 
SpeakEZ Division.. .............................. (844) (781) (1,513) (1,783) 

- 1,912 - Internet Services Division ......................... 1,194 
$ (1,166) $ (2,019) $ (2,246) $ (3,439) 
---- 
-7-v 

June 30, December 31, 
2000 1999 

SEGMENT ASSETS: 
Corrections Division ........................................... $72,382 $66,534 
SpeakEZ Division ............................................. 2,248 3,599 
Internet Services Division ....................................... - - - 

$74,630 $70,133 - 
There was no intersegment revenue for the three months ended June 30,2000 and 1999. Unallwated amounts 

to anive at net earnings (loss) included an income tax (expense) benefit of $(103,000) and $1,398,000 for the six 
months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Consolidated total assets included eliminations of 
approximately $12.7 million and $13.0 million as of June 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999, respectively. 
Eliminations consist of intercompany receivables in the Corrections Division and intercompany payables in the 
SpeakEZ Division related solely to intercompany borrowing of the SpeakEZ Division. 
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

For a comprehensive understanding of our financial condition and performance, this discussion should be 
considered in the context of the condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and other 
infmnation contained lierein. 

- The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking 
statements. Certain information contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements. Important 
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include, 
but are not limited to, those listed under the caption “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 1999, which may affect the potential technological obsolescence of existing systems, the 
renewal of existing site specific Corrections and Internet Service Division customer contracts, the ability to retain 
the base of current site specific customer contracts, the ability to perform under contractual performance 
requirements, the continued relationship with existing customers, the ability to win new contracts for our ptoducts 
and services, including Lock & Track”, Contain” and our Internet Services Division, the ability of our existing 
customers, including AT&T, to maintain their market share of the inmate calling market, the successful 
integration of Gateway Technologies, Inc. into our business, our ability to penetrate the market for jail 
management systems, the ability to reduce expenditures in the SpeakEZ Division and to successfully license 
voice verification and fraud prevention technology, the effect of economic conditions, the effect of regulation, 
including the Telecommunications Act of 1996 that could affect our sales or pricing, the impact of competitive 
products and pricing particularly in the our Corrections Division, our continuing ability to develop hardware and 
software products, commercialization and technological difficulties, manufacturing capacity and product supply 
constraints or difficulties, actual purchases by current and prospective customers under existing and expected 
agreements, and the results of financing efforts, along with the other risks detailed therein. 

Overview 

Acquisition of Gateway Technologies, Znc. 

On June 14, 1999, we completed our merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. or “Gateway” by exchanging 
3,672,234 shares of our common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Each share of Gateway was 
exchanged for 5.0375 shares of our common stock. In addition, outstanding Gateway stock options were 
converted at the same exchange rate into options to purchase approximately 379,000 shares of our common stack. 

The merger constituted a tax-free reorganization and has been accounted for as a pooling of interests under 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16. Accordingly, all prior period information contained in this 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations has been restated to 
include the combined results of operations, financial position and cash flows of T-NETIX and Gateway as though 
Gateway had always been a part of T-NETIX. 

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375,341 shares of common stock to 
certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for their terminating a royalty agreement with Gateway. The royalty 
agreement related to automated call processing technology and intellectual property rights that were assigned to 
Gateway by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The termination of the royalty owners’ interests 
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been recorded at its estimated fair value, or 
$2,487,000. The fair value is based on the value of T-NETIX common stock at February 10, 1999 (date of the 
Merger Agreement), or $6.625, multiplied by the number of shares issued in exchange for termination of the 
royalty owners’ interests. The intangible asset has an estimated useful life of 10 years, the remaining term of the. 
underlying patent. 

Corrections Division 

In the Corrections Division we derive revenue from three main sources: telecommunications services, direct 
call provisioning and equipment sales. Each form of revenue has specific and varying operating costs associated 
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with such revenue. Selling, general and administrative expenses, along with research and development and 
depreciation and *amortization are common expenses regardless of the revenue generated. 

Telecommunications services revenue is generated under long-term contracts. Pricing historically provided 
for transaction fees paid on a per-call basis. We are paid a prescribed fee for each call completed and additional 
fees for validating phone numbers dialed by inmates. The per-call charge is primarily for the provisioning of 
specialized call processing services to telecommunications service providers for their customers, the correctional 
facilities. However, recently we entered into a contract amendment with a significant customer to record revenue 
as a percentage of gross revenue earned by the customer, subject to certain adjustments. This new pricing was an 
effort by us to have our pricing remain flexible and not be effected by factors that affected call volumes. Pursuant 
to the amendment, we also recognized certain telecommunications expenses that were previously reimbursable 
charges to this customer. These charges were previously reimbursable costs to the customer. Our telecommunica- 
tions service provider customers include AT&T, Bell Atlantic, Qwest (formerly US WEST), SBC Communica- 
tions (including Arneritech), BellSouth, Sprint and GTE. 

As a direct inmate call provider, we buy “wholesale” call services to be re-sold as collect calls. We use the 
services of third parties to bill the collect calls. We then enter into direct contracts with the correctional facilities 
and generally pay to the correctional facilities commissions on the gross bilIed revenue. The rates charged by us 
are consistent with the collect call rates charged by the incumbent local exchange carrier or “ILEC” in the same 
service area and the predominant interexchange carrier or “IXC”. Since all calls originating from the inmate 
phones are collect calls, each phone generates higher-than-industry-average revenues. The uncertainty of the 
creditworthiness of the billed parties results however in a higher-than-industry-average uncollectible cost. 

Equipment sales and other revenue includes the sales of our inmate calling system and the DRS system. The 
sales of the inmate calIing system are generally made to only one customer. We then charge monthly maintenance 
fees to keep the system operational. Sales to this customer can vary depending upon the success of the customer 
in winning contracts with correctional facilities. 

Znrerner Services Division 

In December 1999, we entered into a master service agreement with US WEST !NTERPRISE America, Inc. 
to provide interLATA Internet services to US WEST customers. The contract, which commenced December 1, 
1999, calls for us to buy, resell and process billing of Internet bandwidth to this customer. The contract with 
US WEST is for a minimum of sixteen months. 

We recognized significant Internet Services revenue and related costs for the three and six months ended 
June 30,2000 under this agreement. Our gross margin on these services was 18% and 15% for the three and six 
months ended June 30,2000, respectively. The gross margin is effected by the negotiated base management fee 
and contract incentive payments. The costs associated with this contract are primarily the costs for Internet 
bandwidth. There were no capital outlays required to begin provisioning these services. The Company anticipates 
adding personnel to expand the service offerings of the Internet Services Division beyond the scope of the current 
contract. 

Extension of the contract beyond the minimum sixteen-month period is dependent upon the regulatory 
approval process in various states. In the event that US WEST receives regulatory approval to provide inter-LATA 
telecommunications services during or after the initial sixteen month period, our Internet Services revenue could 
be reduced significantly or eliminated. 

Speaker VeriJication Division 

We completed consolidation of our SpeakEZ operations to our Englewood facility in February 1999. The 
reorganization included a change in marketing strategy from a direct customer sales strategy to a technology 
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets a specifically developed software product to a 
specific, end user customer. The strategy is then to find other specific customers who have similar operating 
systems and market this product to these customers. In contrast, a technology licensing strategy focuses on a 
larger scale customer who can integrate the Spe&Z software product into its existing product line. This larger 
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customer, such as a computer manufacturer, would then be responsible for the product integration and ultimate 
delivery to the end user customer. 

Even with the changes in marketing strategy, there can be no assurance that the products based on the 
SpeakEZ technology will achieve the necessary market acceptance or become widely adopted. The market for 
speaker verification software has only recently begun to develop. As is typical in the case of a new and rapidly 
evolving market, demand and market acceptance for recently introduced products and services are subject to a 
high level of uncertainty. Our voice print revenue has been minimal to date. 

Resalts of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compared to June 30, 1999 

The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenue for the 
three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

2000 1999 - -  
Revenue: 
. Telecommunications services. ............................................. 45% 

Direct call provisioning ................................................... 27 
Internet services .............................. : .......................... 25 

3 
Total revenue .......................... -. ............................ 100 

Operating costs .......................................................... 67 
17 

Research and development ............................................... 6 
Depreciation and amortization. ............................................ 12 

Equipment sales and other.. ......................... :. ................... - 

Expenses: 

Selling, general and administrative ......................................... . ,  

- 

57% 
39 

4 
100 

- 
- 

62 
18 
7 

16 - 
................................................... 'Operatingloss (2) (3) 

( 5 )  Merger transaction expenses - 
Interest and other expense - (2) (3) 

Loss before income taxes (4) (11) 
Income tax (expense) benefit. - (1) 4 

Net loss (5) (7) 
Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock - (2) < 

Net loss applicable to common stock.. ............................... (7)% (7)% 

.............................................. 
................................................ 

.......................................... 
............................................. 

......................................................... 
................ 

- -  - -  
* I  

Total Revenue. Total~revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2000 was $26.8 million, an increase of 
51% over $17.8 million for the corresponding prior period. This increase was primarily attributable to the 
commencement of Internet services, as well as increases in telecommunications services revenue and equipment 
sales and other offset, in part by decreases in direct call provisioning revenue. 

The 19% increase in telecommunications services revenue to $12.0 million in the three months ended 
June 30,2000, from $10.1 million for the corresponding prior period, was due primarily to an increase in contract 
prices. We changed our pricing to a significant customer whereby revenue is calculated as a percentage of our 
customer's gross revenue versus a transaction fee per call. In addition we experienced an increase in revenue due 
to call volume increases, primarily due to the addition of new sites. , 

Direct call provisioning revenue increased to $7.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2000, from 
$7.0 million in the corresponding prior period. This increase was due to the addition of sites for which we were 
provisioning the long distance service. The addition of sites is primarily a result of our being successful in 
competitive bidding arrangements for contracts directly with correctional institutions. 

The Internet Services contract commenced in December 1999. Future revenue is dependent upon the base of 
subscribers and contract incentive payments. Internet gross margin for the three months ended June 30,2000 was 
18%. 

. .  
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Equipment sales and other revenue increased 25% to $826,000 for the three months ended June 30, ZOO0 
from $660,0Op in the corresponding prior period. Such sales are primarily associated with one telecommunica- 
tions service provider customer and are dependent upon the timing of installations for this customer and the 
customer's success rate in its territory. In the three months ended June 30, 2000 we had sales of approximately 
$676,000 to this telecommunications service provider customer. We do not expect significant equipment sales in 
the near future. 

Operating costs. Total operating costs were $18.0 million in the three months ended June 30, 2000, an 
increase of 64% from $10.9 million in the corresponding prior period. The increases were primarily due to the 
commencement of Internet services as well as increases in telecommunication services and the cost of equipment 
sold and other expenses offset by a reduction in direct call provisioning expenses. 

Operating costs of telecommunications services primarily consist of service administration costs for 
correctional facilities, including salaries and related personnel expenses, communication costs and inmate calling 
systems repair and maintenance expense. Operating costs of telecommunications services also include costs 
associated with call verification procedures, primarily network expenses and database access charges. Operating 
costs associated with direct call provisioning include the costs associated with telephone line access, long 
distance charges, commissions paid to correctional facilities, costs associated with uncollectible accounts and 
billing charges. Internet Services expense consists of Internet bandwidth costs. Cost of equipment sold and other 
includes primarily the purchase price of equipment which is resold. Other equipment cost components was 
minimal. Voice print operating costs include royalty charges, the cost of hardware and the cost of services which 
amounts are reflected as other operating costs. 

The following table sets forth the operating costs and expenses for each type of revenue as a percentage of 
corresponding revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

2000 1999 - -  
Operating costs: 

Telecommunications services. ............................................. 45% 42% 
Direct call provisioning .................................................. 93 92 
Internet services.. ...................................................... 82 . - 
Cost of equipment sold and other., ........................................ 40 32 

Operating costs associated with providing telecommunications services as a percentage of corresponding 
revenue was 45% for the three months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from 42% for the corresponding prior 
period. The increase was due primarily tu cost increases. Total telecommunications services operating expenses 
were $5.4 million for the three months ended June 30,2000 and $4.3 million for the corresponding prior period. 
The increase in 2000 is due to new services being provisioned for a significant customer as part of a contract 
amendment and due to increases in personnel costs. The increase included bonus costs associated with our line 
installation bonus program. The bonus program ended as of June 30,2000. Also, the addition of new personnel in 
the National Service Center and other operational support functions contributed to cost increases. To a lesser 
extent, increases in travel and contract labor contributed to the overall cost increase. With the addition or 
personnel at ow, National Service Center and based on contract negotiations we believe we can reduce field 
operations personnel in the near future. 

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of applicable revenue increased slightly to 93% of revenue for 
the three months ended June 30, 2000 an increase from 92% for the corresponding prior period. These costs 
include increases due to site commissions and transmissions costs offset by a reduction in bad debt expense 
because of improved collections. 

The contract for Internet services commenced in December 1999. Future revenue increases are dependent 
upon the base of subscribers and additional contract incentive payments. Cost of equipment sold and other 
increased in the three months ended June 30,2000 and also increased as a percentage of corresponding revenue 
from the corresponding prior primarily due to the change in the revenue mix for equipment sales. 
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $4.6 mil- 
lion for the three months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $3.3 million for the corresponding prior period, 
Selling, general and administrative expenses associated with the Corrections Division were $4.5 million for the 
three months ended June 30,2000 compared to $3.1 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase in the 
three months ended June'aO, 2000 was primarily due to increases in salary and benefits for additional personnel, 
from raises for existing personnel and the installation bonus program. Other expenses, including travel and 
professional fees, increased due to the integration of Gateway's operations. We anticipate selling, general and 
administrative expenses to remain consistent with current levels in the near future. 

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $1.6 million in the three 
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $1.3 million for the corresponding prior period. Research and 
development expenses for the Corrections Division were $1.3 million in the three months ended June 30, 2000 
and $1.1 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase was primarily due to increased personnel 
expenses. We anticipate research and development expenses to remain consistent for the remainder of the year. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense was $3.1 million in the 
three months ended June 30,2000, an increase from $2.8 million for the corresponding prior period. The increase 
was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new site installations. 

Merger Transaction Expenses. These expenses were directly related to the merger with Gateway and 
amounted to approximately $827,000 for the three months ended June 30, 1999. Merger transaction expenses 
consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related 
charges. 

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, net was $673,000 for the three months ended 
June 30, 2000, an increase from $633,000 for the corresponding prior period. Included in other income in the 
three months ended June 30, 2000 is a gain of approximately $46,000 on the sale of used telecommunications 
equipment. Interest expense was $719,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2000, and $633,000 for the 
corresponding prior period. The increase in 2000 was attributable to an increase in the average amount of 
indebtedness outstanding and an increase in interest rates. The average debt balance increased primarily due to 
the increase in capital expenditures. 

. 
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Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compared to June 30, I999 

months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 
The following table sets forb certain statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenue for the six 

2000 1999 - -  
Revenue: 

Telecommunications services. ............................................. 44% 56% 
Direct call provisioning .................................................. 29 38 
Internet services ......................................................... 25 - . 
Equipment sales and other.. .............................................. 2 6 - -  

Total revenue .................................................... 100 100 .. 

Expenses: . 

Operating costs.; ........................................................ 68 62 
Selling, general and administrative.. ........................................ 17 19 
Research and development ................................................ 5 7 
Depreciation and amortization.. ........................................... 12 16 

Operating loss ................................................... (2) (4) 
............................................... (3) 

Interest and other expense ................................... : ............. - (2) (3) 
Loss before income taxes .......................................... (4) (10) 

Income tax (expense) benefit. ............................................. 
Net loss. ........................................................ (4) (6) 

................ (1) = Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock 
Net loss applicable to common stock.. ............................... - (9% (6)% 

- -  
- Merger transaction expenses 

4 - - -  

- 
- -  

. .  

.- 

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the six months ended June 30,2000 was $50.3 million, an increase of 42% 
over $35.5 million for the corresponding prior period. This increase was primarily attributable to the 
commencement of Internet services, as well as increases in telecommunications services revenue and direct call 
provisioning revenue offset in part by decreases in equipment sales and other. 

The 1 1 % increase in telecommunications services revenue to $22.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 
2000, from $19.9 million for the corresponding prior period, was due primarily to an increase in contract prices. 
We changed our pricing to a significant customer whereby revenue is calculated as a percentage of our customer’s 
gross revenue versus a transaction fee per call. In addition we experienced an increase in revenue due to call 
volume increases, primarily due to the addition of new sites. 

Direct call provisioning revenue increased 7% to $14.5 million for the six months ended June 30,2000, from 
$13.5 million in the corresponding prior period. This increase was due to the addition of new sites primarily for 
which we are provisioning the long distance service. The addition of sites is primarily a result of our being 
successful in competitive bidding arrangements for contracts directly with correctional institutions. 

The Internet Services contract commenced in December 1999. Future revenue increases are dependent upon 
the base of subscribers and additional contract incentive payments. 

Equipment sales and other revenue decreased 43% to $1.2 million for the six months ended June 30,2000 
from $2.1 million in the corresponding prior period. Such sales are primarily associated with one telecommunica- 
tions service provider customer and are dependent upon the timing of installations for this customer and the 
customer’s success rate in its territory. In the six months ended June 30, 2000 we had sales of approximately 
$1.1 million to this telecommunications service provider customer. The reduction for the six months ended 
June 30,2000 from the corresponding prior period is due primarily to the timing of purchases by this customer. 

Operating costs. Total operating costs were $34.3 million in the six months ended June 30, 2000, an 
increase of 57% from $21.9 million in the corresponding prior period. The increases were primarily due to the 
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commencement of Internet services as well as increases in telecommunication services and direct call 
provisioning expenses offset. by a reduction in the cost of equipment sold and other expenses. 

Operating costs of .terecommunications services primarily consist of service administration costs for 
correCtional facilities, includjng salaries and related personnel expenses, communication costs and inmate calling 
systems repair and maintenance expense. Operating costs of telecommunications services also include costs 
associated with call verification procedures, primarily network expenses and database access charges. Operating 
costs associated with direct call provisioning include the costs associated with telephone line access, long 
distance charges, commissions paid to correctional facilities, costs associated with uncollectible accounts and 
billing charges. Internet Services expense consists of Internet bandwidth costs. Cost of equipment sold and other 
includes primarily the purchase price of equipment which is resold. Other equipment cost components was 
minimal. Voice print operating costs include royalty charges, the cost of hardware and the cost of services which 
amounts are reflected as other operating costs. 

The following table sets forth the operating costs and expenses for each type of revenue as a percentage of 
corresponding revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

- -  2000 1999 

Operating costs: 
Telecommunications services. ............................................. 45% 43% 
Direct call provisioning .................................................. 92 93 
Internet services ........................................................ 85 - 
Cost of equipment sold and other.. ........................................ 45 41 

Operating costs associated with providing telecommunications services as a percentage of corresponding 
revenue was 45% for the six months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from 43% for the corresponding prior 
period. The increase was due to cost increases. Total telecommunications services operating expenses were 
$9.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and $8.5 million for the corresponding prior period. The 
increase in 2000 is due to new services being provisioned for a significant customer as part of a contract 
amendment and due to increases in personnel costs. The increase included bonus costs associated with our line 
installation bonus program. The bonus program ended as of June 30,2000. Also, the addition of new personnel in 
the National Service Center and other operational support functions contributed to cost increases. To a lesser 
extent, increases in, travel, consulting services, repairs and maintenance contributed to the overall cost increase. 

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of applicable revenue decreased to 92% of revenue for the six 
months ended June 30,2000 from 93% in for the corresponding prior period. This decrease was primarily due to 
a reduction in bad debt expense because of improved collections. 

The contract for Internet services commenced in December 1999. Cost of equipment sold and other 
decreased in the six months ended June 30,2000 but increased as a percentage of corresponding revenue from the 
corresponding prior primarily due to the change in the revenue mix for equipment sales and voice print sales. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $8.3 mil- 
lion for the six months ended June 30,2000 compared to $6.6 million for the corresponding prior period. Selling, 
general and administrative expenses associated with the Corrections Division were $8.1 million for the six 
months ended June 30,2000 compared to $6.2 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase in the six 
months ended June 30,2000 was primarily due to increases in salary and benefits for additional personnel, from 
raises for existing personnel and the installation bonus program. Other expenses increased due to travel, 
communications and professional fees due to the integration of Gateway operations. 

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $2.7 million in the six 
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $2.6 million for the corresponding prior period. Research and 
development expenses for the Corrections Division were $2.4 million in the six months ended June 30,2000 and 
$2.2 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase was primarily due to higher travel and consulting 
costs. 
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Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense was $6.2 million in the 
six months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from $5.7 million for the corresponding prior period. The increase 
was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new site installations. 

Merger Transaction Expenses. These expenses were directly related to the merger with Gateway and 
amounted to approximately $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 1999. Merger transaction expenses 
consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related 
charges. 

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, net was $1 .O million for the six months ended 
June 30,2000, a decrease from $1.1 million for the corresponding prior period. Included in other income in the 
six months ended June 30, 2000 is a gain of approximately $334,000 on the sale of used telecommunications 
equipment. There was $59,000 of miscellaneous other income in the six months ended June 30, 1999. Interest 
expense was $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000, and $1 .O million for the corresponding prior 
period. The increase in 2000 was attributable to an increase in the average amount of indebtedness outstanding 
and an increase in interest rates. The average debt balance increased primarily due to the increase in capital 
expenditures and business acquisitions. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Cash Flows 

We incurred losses from continuing operations for the six months ended June 30, 2000 of $2.3 million and 
had a working capital deficit of $30.8 million at June 30, 2000. In July 2000 our lenders amended our credit 
agreement to provide for revised financial covenants. Additionally, we raised $7.5 million of debt and equity 
financing in April 2000. The net proceeds were used to reduce the outstanding balance on our credit facility. We 
are taking steps to improve our cash flow from operations, including renegotiating contract pricing and cost 
control measures in order to carry out the remainder of our fiscal 2000 business plan. However, there can be no 
assurance that we will be successful in increasing our cash flow from operations and we may require additional 
financing to fund our operations. In the event additional financing is required, we may not be able to obtain 
financing on terms acceptable to us and we may have to curtain operations. 

We present the following information for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 and as of June 30, 
2000 and December 31, 1999: 

2000 1999 
(Amounts in 
Thousands) 

Cash provided by operating activities .................................. !§ 3,083 $ 5,342 
Working capital deficit. ............................................. $(30,783) $(8,152) 

We have historically relied upon commercial borrowings, operating cash flow and the sale of equity 
securities to fund our operations and capital needs. Cash provided by operations decreased 42% to $3.1 million 
for the six months ended June 30,2000 from $5.3 million in the corresponding prior period primarily due to an 
increase in the net loss, reductions in accounts payable, and increases in accounts receivable. The increase in the 
working capital deficitis primarily due to the classification of the bank credit facility. The current maturity of the 
facility is April 30, 2001. 

Purchases of property and equipment were $8.5 million in the six months ended June 30,2000 compared to 
$6.3 million for the corresponding prior period. The 36% increase in purchases of property and equipment was 
primarily due to additional inmate calling system installations and upgrades to existing systems. 

Debt and Equity 

We have been funding our operations primarily from available borrowings under a line of credit and by using 
cash provided by operations. Due to our capital requirements for new installations and the merger with Gateway, 
in September 1999, we entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (“Credit Facility”) with a 
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commercial bank. The maximum amount of credit under the credit facility available to the Company is dependent 
upon the Company’s financial performance. Based on the financial covenants, the Company’s maximum 
borrowings at June 30,2000 were less than $40 million. In July 2000 our lenders amended our credit agreement 
to revise certain financial covenants. In addition, we raised $7.5 million of debt and equity financing in April 
2000. ‘The net proceeds of approximately $7.2 million were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the Credit 
Facility. 

We anticipate that our capital expenditures in 2000 will be consistent with 1999 based on our anticipated 
growth in installed systems at correctional facilities. We believe our Credit Facility and cash flows from 
operations will be sufficient in order for us to meet our anticipated cash needs for anticipated new installations of 
inmate call processing systems and upgrades of existing systems and to finance our operations for at least the next 
12 months. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in increasing our cash flow from 
operations and we may require additional financing to fund operations. In the event additional financing is 
required, we may not be able to obtain financing on terms acceptable to us and we may have to curtain 
operations. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 

We are exposed to interest rate risk as discussed below. 

Interest Rate Risk 

We have current debt outstanding under the credit facility of $26.7 million at June 30, 2000. The credit 
facility bears interest at differing rates including, $22 million at LIBOR plus 4.0% and the remaining balance at 
the prime rate, 9.5% at June 30, 2000, plus 1.25%. Interest on LIBOR rate loans is payable at the end of the 
interest period applicable to the loan but not longer than every six months. Interest on prime rate loans is payable 
every six months. Since the interest rates on the loans outstanding are variable and are reset periodically, we are 
exposed to interest rate risk. An increase in interest rates of 1% would increase estimated annual interest expense 
by approximately $280,000 based on the amount of borrowings outstanding under the line of credit at June 30, 
2000. 

. .. 
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PART II OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 

From time to time we have been, and expect to continue to be subject to various legal and administrative 
proceedings or various claims in the normal course of our business. We believe the ultimate disposition of these 
matters will not have a material affect on our financial condition, liquidity, or results of operations. 

In a case brought in the First Judicial District Court of the State of New Mexico, styled Valdez v. State of 
New Mexico, et. al., the complaint joins as defendants the State of New Mexico, several political subdivisions,of 
the State of New Mexico and several inmate telecommunications service providers, including T-NETIX and 
Gateway. The complaint includes a request for certification by the court of a plaintiffs’ class action consisting of 
all persons who have been billed for and paid for telephone calls initiated by an inmate confined in a jail, prison, 
detention center or other New Mexico correctional facility. The complaint alleges violations of New Mexico 
Unfair Practices Act, the New Mexico Antitrust Act and the New Mexico Constitution, and also alleges unjust 
enrichment, constructive trust, economic compulsion, constructive fraud and illegality of contracts, all in 
connection with the provision of “collect only” inmate telecommunications services. Although management 
believes the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is low, there can be no assurance that a judgment against a 
class of defendant providers will not ultimately be entered. 

In a case brought in the Superior Court of Washington for King County, styled Sandy Judd, et al. v. 
American Telephone and Telegraph Company, et. al., the complaint joins as several inmate telecommunications 
service providers, including T-NFiTIX. The complaint includes a request for certification by the court of a 
plaintiffs’ class action consisting of all persons who have been billed for and paid for telephone calls initiated by 
an inmate confined in a jail, prison, detention center or other Washington correctional facility. The complaint 
alleges violations of the Washington Consumer Protection Act and requests an injunction under the Washington 
Consumer Protection Act and common law to enjoin further violations. Although management believes the 
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is low, there can be no assurance that a judgment against a class of 
defendant providers will not ultimately be entered. 

l -  

Gateway is a defendant in a case brought in United States District Court Western District of Kentucky at 
Louisville, styled Gus “Skip” Daleure, Jr., et a1 vs. Commonwealth of Kentucky, et al. The complaint in this case 
joined as defendants several states, political subdivisions of states, and inmate service telecommunications 
providers and was filed contemporaneously with a request for certification by the court of a nationwide plaintiffs’ 
class action consisting of all persons who have received and paid for telephone calls initiated by an inmate at a 
prison, jail or other correctional institution for the provision of “collect only” inmate telecommunications 
services. The complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relief and money damages in an unstated amount for 
alleged violations of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Robinson-Patman Act and the U.S. Constitution. The district 
court held, on motions to dismiss; Kentucky did not have personal jurisdiction over defendants not located in or 
doing business in the state of Kentucky; that telephone calls are not goods or commodities and thus are not 
subject to the antitrust provisions of the Robinson-Patman Act; that Plaintiffs did not state a claim for relief under 
the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment; and that Plaintiffs had not shown any harm in support 
of its antitrust claim under Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The trial judge did not, however, dismiss plaintiffs 
prayer for injunctive relief, despite these findings. The case is currently subject to appeal and cross appeal in the 
Second Circuit Court of Appeals. Although Gateway believes the District Court holding will not be overturned it 
is possible the in may be and there can be no assurance that a judgment against a class of the providers will not 
ultimately be entered. 

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds 

None 

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities 

None. 
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

On May 12, 2000 the Company held its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to elect four directors of the 
Company to hold office until the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their respective successors are 
duly elected and qualified'and to ratify the selection of KPMG LLP; independent auditors, as auditors of the 
Company for the year ending December 31, 2000. The directors were elected and KPMG was ratified as 
independent auditors with the following voting results; 10,712,465 FOR; 113,281 AGAINST; and 400 
WITHHOLD. 

Item 5. Other Information 

None. 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibits 

10.12 - First Amendment to Loan Agreement $40,000,000 Revolving Line of Credit from 
Bank One, Colorado, NA, COBANK, ACB, and INTRUST Bank, NA dated July 11, 
2000. 

27 - Financial Data Schedule. 

(b) The Company filed a Form 8-K dated April 19, 2000 reporting the following: 

Item 5 on Form 8-K regarding additional equity financing. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed-on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

T-NETIX, INC. 
(Registrant) 

Date August 14, 2000 

By: Is1 ALVYN A. SCHOPP 
Alvyn A. Schopp 

Chief Executive Oficer 

i 
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PARENT COMPANY LETTERHEAD 

September 12,2000 

To: T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 

Re: T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 
Arizona Corporation Commission 

T-NETIX, Inc., the parent company of T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc., will provide complete 
financial baclung if the Company experiences a net loss or a business failure and will guarantee to 
payment of customers, advances, prepayments or deposits held by T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc., for 
some reason, it cannot provide service or repay the deposits. 

Subscribed and sworn to me, this \8 day of SQPF;2000. 

MY Commission expires on I I -30-03 , 

cc: Lance J.M. Steinhart, Esq. 

Az GTY Letter 
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